
Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee
Date: Wednesday, 30 November 2016
Time: 6.00 pm

Venue: Committee Room 1 - Wallasey Town Hall

Contact Officer: Patrick Sebastian 
Tel: 0151 691 8262424
e-mail: patricksebastian@wirral.gov.uk
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk

AGENDA
1. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

/ PARTY WHIP 

Members are asked to consider whether they have any disclosable 
pecuniary interests and/or any other relevant interest in connection 
with any item(s) on this agenda and, if so, to declare them and state 
the nature of the interest.
 
Members are reminded that they should also declare whether they are 
subject to a party whip in connection with any item(s) to be considered 
and, if so, to declare it and state the nature of the whipping 
arrangement.

2. MINUTES                                                                     (Pages 1 - 28)

To approve the accuracy of the minutes of the following meetings of 
the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee:

 Special meeting 26 July 2016 – Call-In Domestic Refuse 
Collection Outline Business Case.

 Ordinary meeting 21 September 2016. 
 Special meeting 9 November 2016 – Community Patrol 

Services. 

Public Document Pack



3. NOTICE OF MOTION: PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
REPORTING ARRANGEMENTS                                (Pages 29 - 30)

At the meeting of the Council held on 17 October 2016 (minute 67 (5) 
refers), the attached Notice of Motion, ‘Performance Management 
Reporting Arrangements’ proposed by Councillor Phil Gilchrist and 
seconded by Councillor Stuart Kelly was referred by the Mayor to the 
People, Environment and Business Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees for consideration.
 
In accordance with Standing Order 7 (6), Councillor Gilchrist has been 
invited to attend the meeting in order for him to be given an opportunity 
to explain the Motion.

4. NOTICE OF MOTION: RECOGNISING THE CONTRIBUTION OF 
OUR FRIENDS GROUPS                                           (Pages 31 - 32)

At the meeting of the Council held on 17 October 2016 (minute 67 (6) 
refers), the attached Notice of Motion, ‘Recognising the contribution of 
our Friends Groups’ proposed by Councillor Lesley Rennie and 
seconded by Councillor Paul Hayes was referred by the Mayor to the 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee for consideration.
 
In accordance with Standing Order 7 (6), Councillor Rennie has been 
invited to attend the meeting in order for her to be given an opportunity 
to explain the Motion.

5. NUMBER OF COUNCILLORS - REPORT OF THE SCRUTINY 
REVIEW PANEL 

(Report to Follow)

6. WIRRAL LEISURE STRATEGY                                  (Pages 33 - 62)

The Strategic Commissioner for Environment will provide a 
presentation updating Members on progress made against the action 
plans arising from the Leisure Strategy.

7. WIRRAL CULTURE STRATEGY                                (Pages 63 - 92)

The Strategic Commissioner for Environment will provide a 
presentation updating Members on progress made against the action 
plans arising from the Culture Strategy.

8. 2016/17 QUARTER 2 WIRRAL PLAN PERFORMANCE - 
ENVIRONMENT THEME                                          (Pages 93 - 106)

9. 2016/17 QUARTER 2 - FINANCIAL MONITORING  (Pages 107 - 140)

10. ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - WORK 
PROGRAMME UPDATE                                         (Pages 141 - 146)



11. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR 
(PART 1) 

12. EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND 
PUBLIC 

The public may be excluded from the meeting during consideration of 
the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information.

RECOMMENDED

That, in accordance with section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of 
the following items of business, on the grounds that they involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined by the relevant 
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A (as amended) to that Act. The 
public interest test has been applied and favours exclusion.

13. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR 
(PART 2) 



This page is intentionally left blank



ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 26 July 2016

Present: Councillor P Brightmore (Chair)

Councillors T Anderson
B Berry
D Burgess-Joyce 
(In place of T 
Pilgrim)
C Carubia
S Foulkes
T Jones

B Kenny (In place 
of J McManus)
A Leech (In place of 
J Walsh)
C Muspratt
L Rowlands
A Sykes
T Usher
I Williams

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors J McManus, T Pilgrim 
and J Walsh.

2 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST / 
PARTY WHIP 

Members were reminded of their responsibility to declare any disclosable 
pecuniary interest and/or any other relevant interest in any item of business 
on the agenda, no later than when the item was reached.

Members were reminded that they should also declare whether they were 
subject to a party whip in connection with any item(s) to be considered at this 
meeting and, if so, to declare it and state the nature of the whipping 
arrangement.

No such declarations were made.

3 CALL-IN OF CABINET MINUTE 19 - DOMESTIC REFUSE COLLECTION 
OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE 

Chair’s Introduction

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and outlined the procedure to 
be adopted in respect of the two call-ins that had been received. Each lead 
signatory would have five minutes to provide an explanation of the call-in and 
then the Cabinet Member – Environment would have five minutes to explain 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



the decision that the Cabinet had taken. On this occasion no witnesses had 
been called by those calling in the decision but the decision taker had called 
the following witnesses:

 Mark Smith – Head of Regulation and Environment
 Andy McCartan – Contracts Manager Environment and Regulation 

Waste and Recycling, Regeneration and Environment
 Kevin MacCallum - Senior Manager: Marketing and Communications

They each would be given five minutes to read out any statements they may 
have prepared. The Committee would be invited to ask questions at the end 
of each of the stages outlined. This would be followed by summing up by the 
Lead Signatories and the Cabinet Member, a debate and finally the 
Committee would make its decision. 

The Committee then considered the detail of two call-ins of the Cabinet’s 
decisions made at its meeting on 27 June 2016 on the Domestic Refuse 
Collection Outline Business Case (Cabinet Minute No. 9 refers.) which was: 

‘That

(1) the Outline Business Case set out in the report be approved and 
officers be requested to carry out further detailed work on the two 
short-listed options in order to prepare a Full Business Case and 
recommendations for future domestic refuse collections, to be 
reported to a future meeting; and

(2) the proposed approach to public consultation on the shortlisted 
options as set out in section 9 of the report be approved.’

Councillor I Lewis along with Councillors A Brighouse, C Carubia, P Gilchrist, 
S Kelly and D Mitchell had called the Cabinet’s decision in as they considered

‘that the Cabinet is wrong to consult on changes to the collection of 
waste in Wirral based upon only presenting two options to improve 
recycling to the public, including the possibility of moving to a three 
weekly collection of residual waste.  This decision effectively limits the 
feedback that the Council could receive from residents on the best 
ways of achieving 50% or more recycling rates within their 
communities.  This call in requests that Cabinet engage in a more open 
and wide ranging consultation on waste management with the people 
of Wirral over a longer three month period in order to gauge public 
opinion of the Cabinet’s 3 weekly option and to consider alternatives.’

Page 2



Councillors L Rennie, T Anderson, B Berry, C Blakeley, E Boult, D Burgess-
Joyce, W Clements, D Elderton, G Ellis, J Green, J Hale, P Hayes, A Hodson, 
K Hodson, I Lewis, T Pilgrim, C Povall, L Rowlands, A Sykes, G Watt and S 
Williams had also called in the same decision for the following reasons:

‘Whist agreeing with the premise of increasing recycling rates in Wirral 
the signatories to this call-in are concerned that the limited two options 
being offered to the public for consultation equate to a reduction in the 
domestic refuse collection services to the Council Taxpayers of Wirral.

Wirral Council has previously piloted the separate collection of food 
waste and it was not deemed to be a viable option.  In order to ensure 
we maximise the opportunities for food waste recycling we must 
enhance the current service and be truly consultative with our residents 
giving them the opportunity to shape the service that they pay for.

Any consultation should give the public the opportunity to share their 
views and ideas with the Council as to how a 50% or more recycling 
rate can be achieved and, at the very least, we should be giving our 
residents the option of maintaining the current waste collection 
arrangements and listening to their reasons for this.’

The Two Options

The Committee noted that an options appraisal exercise had identified two 
options for future waste management provision.  Both these options involved 
establishing weekly separate food waste collections and changing residual 
green bin collections, either by reducing capacity through a smaller bin 
(Option 1) or reducing the frequency of collection (Option 2). 

It was intended that the current fortnightly dry recycling (grey bin) and garden 
waste (brown bin) would continue as part of both options.   

The Committee also noted that it was the Officers’ view that both options 
achieved the 2020 recycling target.  The Options were as follows:

   
OPTION GREEN - 

RESIDUAL 
BIN 

GREY - 
MULTI 

MATERIAL 
BIN 

NEW 
FOOD BIN 

1 NEW 140L 
EVERY 2 
WEEKS 

240L 
EVERY 2 
WEEKS 

23L EVERY 
WEEK 

Page 3



2 CURRENT 
240L 
EVERY 3 
WEEKS 

240L 
EVERY 2 
WEEKS 

23L EVERY 
WEEK 

Explanation of the Call-in by Councillor S Kelly – Lead Signatory

The Chair invited Councillor S Kelly Lead Signatory to the call-in to address 
the Committee for up to five minutes.

Councillor S Kelly informed that he was not at the meeting to try to make a 
case against the idea that the Council should introduce a weekly collection for 
food waste - that was not the purpose of the call-in. He considered that there 
was support for increased recycling amongst Wirral residents.

However, there was some concern about how food waste collection would 
work in practice.  Therefore, it was important that people fully understood the 
process that they could expect from the Council and the best way to manage 
the process within their households. Councillor Kelly was aware that the 
majority of Councils who operated food collection had a high level of buy in 
from their residents.

Councillor Kelly referred to the unhappy experience of the last time this had 
been tried and informed that this was what was worrying some of the people 
who had contacted him since the Cabinet meeting.  He was of the view that 
these concerns needed to be worked through and it was his view that if the 
Council worked with people and listened to their ideas the rates of recycling 
could be increased.

Councillor Kelly believed that the problem was that the Council approached 
the issue of waste collection and recycling with a 'we know best attitude’ 
loosely wrapped up as a consultation. It was not intended to have an open 
and wide-ranging conversation with people about how to increase recycling or 
how to best introduce a food collection service.

Councillor Kelly questioned why, when eleven options were being analysed, 
was the Council only consulting residents on two options, including three 
weekly green bin collections when there were other options available.

Councillor Kelly felt that the Cabinet’s decision was an insult to the 
intelligence of the people of Wirral and that it should be referred back with a 
demand from this Committee for a real conversation with the people of Wirral 
about recycling.

Explanation of the Call-in by Councillor I Lewis – Lead Signatory

The Chair invited Councillor I Lewis Lead Signatory to the call-in to address 
the Committee for up to five minutes.

Page 4



Councillor I Lewis reported that the decision to introduce food waste recycling 
had all party support and was included in the Wirral Plan along with the 
pledge to recycle 50% of all waste by 2020.

Councillor Lewis was of the view that the Council should encourage the local 
community to put forward ideas.  However, the restrictive timescale in respect 
of the consultation - a six week period, during the summer holidays – 
discouraged this. Councillor Lewis considered that a public consultation, to be 
meaningful, should run over twelve weeks not six. He, therefore, considered 
that the evidence to be collected to inform the decision was being restricted.

Councillor Lewis also referred to the long list of eleven options and to the 
options appraisal which had reduced them down to only two.

Questions and Comments

The Chair invited questions to either of the two Lead Signatories to the call-in, 
Councillors S Kelly and I Lewis. Committee Members informed that they had 
no questions at this stage.

Overview and Explanation of the Decision Taken by the Cabinet Member 
– Environment, Councillor B Mooney

The Chair then invited the Cabinet Member to explain the decision for up to 
five minutes.

Councillor B Mooney, Cabinet Member – Environment informed that the 
Council had a responsibility to do everything it could to improve and protect 
the environment.  The recycling plan was good for Wirral, good for the 
community and good for the environment.  Councillor Mooney warned that 
failure to meet recycling targets would end in fines from the EU and a 
significant increase in the levy paid by the Council for waste disposal and 
treatment.  Consequently, doing nothing was not an option. The results must 
be improved.  The Council wanted residents’ views and they wanted a 
greener and cleaner Wirral.

Councillor Mooney referred to the 2015/16 Waste Management Strategy and 
informed that the Council needed to revise its arrangements in order to deliver 
the Wirral Plan.  Delivering the Wirral Plan was a commitment which was 
being taken extremely seriously.

There had been improvements in recycling since November 2015.  The 
Council now recycled 37% but it needed to increase to 50% by 2020.  In 
Wirral, it was estimated that the Council needed to reduce residual waste by 
16,000 tonnes to help achieve this challenging target of recycling 50% of 
household waste by 2020. This waste must be removed from green bins and 
the Council must recycle more.

Page 5



Consequently, residents were being asked to make a straight choice, doing 
nothing would mean targets were not met.  Evidence from looking at what was 
thrown away in Wirral showed that almost 40% of rubbish that went into the 
green waste bins was food, so by investing in a food recycling collection 
service the Council would significantly boost its recycling rate. This was the 
compelling evidence seen in every other local authority area which had 
invested in a household food waste collection service.

Councillor Mooney reported that recycling leftover food was the right thing to 
do for the environment.  Rotting food in landfill generated methane, which was 
a greenhouse gas 21 times more potent than carbon dioxide and which 
contributed to climate change. The food that would be collected in the new 
containers would be taken to a special processing plant in Widnes which 
would result in it generating renewable energy and a nutrient-rich fertilizer that 
could be used to grow more food.

The Chair then thanked Councillor Mooney for her time in answering 
questions from the Committee.

Questions

The Chair invited questions to the Cabinet Member from the Committee.

Councillor B Kenny referred to Councillor S Kelly’s remark about a 'we know 
best attitude’ and asked the Cabinet Member if she was satisfied that the 
consultation outlined would provide every resident of Wirral with the 
opportunity to have their say.

Councillor B Mooney replied that she was satisfied and that there was a Team 
of Officers in place who would work with the local community to achieve what 
the Council was working towards.

Councillor A Sykes referred to the fact that Members did not have a break- 
down of recycling figures and asked why the consultation did not include other 
areas to improve recycling e.g. why was the Council not looking at recycling 
tetra packs?  He considered that people were being forced down certain 
routes as there were no additional measures being considered.

Councillor B Mooney responded by referring to the Council’s contract with 
Biffa for recycling different products.  She informed that Officers could provide 
the technical answers.  Councillor Mooney informed that some parts of the 
Borough were recycling 50-60% of waste.  She informed that the Council 
would do all that it could to increase the amount of recycling in Wirral.  It was 
trying to do what it could within the capacity it operated in.

Councillor A Sykes informed that there was a lot of money to be saved in 
landfill tax but reducing to three weekly collections was not a cost saving.

Page 6



Councillor B Mooney responded that the Council had to recycle more of the 
waste it collected and be a cleaner Wirral.  It was important to encourage 
Wirral residents to recycle more.

Councillor A Leech informed that the recent ‘door knocking exercise’ in 
Leasowe had made a big difference.  People did put all sorts of things in the 
green bin that could be recycled but by providing smaller green bins people 
will use their grey bin (for recyclables) more.

Councillor B Mooney agreed with Councillor A Leech and informed that was 
the thinking behind the proposals. Officers would go out and do exactly what 
they had done in Leasowe.

Councillor T Anderson asked if there was any merit in getting down to the 
wards rather than forcing people into ‘a one size fits all’ arrangement.

Councillor B Mooney reported that the Fly Tipping Team had been very 
successful.  There was now less waste left in alley ways etc.  She was not so 
worried about fly tipping now.  With regard to wards she informed that this 
was where education came in, a behavioural change was required.

Councillor A Sykes referred to Wirral South and Wirral West’s recycling 
figures which were substantially higher than the rest of the Borough and 
asked how they could be expected to recycle more by imposing these options 
on them.  He was concerned that a broad brush approach would not suit all 
areas and recycling rates could not be expected to increase much more in 
Wirral South and Wirral West.  Reducing the size of their green bins would not 
make much difference.

Councillor B Mooney replied that it would not be a ‘one size fits all approach’.  
She informed that the Officers would explain this and that they had carried out 
some research.

Councillor S Foulkes was of the view that if the recycling rate in Wirral West 
was 62% without provision to recycle food, surely the figure would increase.  
He informed that it was important to reduce the no of tonnes going to landfill.  
The target was via weight.  Councillor Foulkes informed that it was the 
Council’s responsibility.  The key was that recycling had a useful end use.

Councillor B Mooney agreed with Councillor S Foulkes informing that 90% of 
food would be reused in one way or another as fertilizer etc.

Councillor C Carubia informed Councillor B Mooney that the issue was what 
did the Council do with what was left.  He asked what Wirral residents were 
going to be consulted on.

Page 7



Councillor B Mooney informed Councillor C Carubia that the Senior Manager: 
Marketing and Communications, Kevin MacCallum would respond to his 
question.

Councillor A Leech referred to the consultation being undertaken and 
informed that it was multi-level and that it would be longer than twelve weeks.

Councillor B Mooney agreed with Councillor A Leech informing that 
consultation had commenced last November with the Recycling Campaign.  A 
booklet had been distributed to every household in Wirral informing what 
could and could not be recycled.  There had been information broadcast on 
the local radio about recycling.  Officers had visited schools, arranged Pop up 
Shops and encouraged people to use left overs.  There had also been 
campaigns about dog fouling and litter.  It had all been an ongoing process.  
Moving forward the amount being deposited in the green bins had to be 
reduced.

The Chair then thanked Councillor B Mooney for her time and for answering 
the Committee’s questions.

Evidence from Call-in Witnesses  

The Chair reminded the Committee that there were no call-in witnesses.

Evidence from the Decision Taker’s Witnesses
Mark Smith, Head of Environment and Regulation, Andy McCartan 
Contracts Manager, and Kevin MacCallum, Senior Manager: Marketing 
and Communications.

The Chair invited the witnesses to the call-in to address the Committee for up 
to five minutes.

The Committee was informed that the three Officers had not prepared any 
written statements to read out but they were ready to answer Members’ 
questions.

The Head of Environment and Regulation referred to a request from the 
Conservative Group for the breakdown of recycling rates at Constituency level 
and clarified that there was no breakdown available.  Overall participation was 
at 50-60%. 

Questions and Comments

The Chair then invited questions from the Committee.

Councillor S Foulkes referred to the call-in being about the consultation and 
asked if other ideas could be raised through the consultation process e.g. 

Page 8



would the questionnaire allow for this.  Was there any assurance that other 
comments could be made on the questionnaire and then taken on board?

The Senior Manager: Marketing and Communications informed that it was 
intended that recycling levels would be explained and people would be asked 
for their ideas, thoughts, concerns and opinions.  Data received would be 
qualitative and require a huge amount of analysis.  All of this would be 
published.

Two options would be put forward and views on them would be requested.

Councillor S Foulkes asked if the levy for Mersey Waste was based on pure 
tonnage.

The Head of Environment and Regulation informed that the levy was based 
around tonnage and that there was a strong financial case to make a 
difference in this area.  The Waste Authority had written to the Chief 
Executive and there were strong financial arguments.

Members noted that some local authorities in the country had moved quickly 
to introduce such schemes because of the financial challenge that was 
coming.  The Council paid less for what it recycled than for landfill.  Therefore, 
waste minimisation was the Council’s preferred option.

Councillor A Leech enquired whether either of the proposals had been tried 
and tested elsewhere and if the six week consultation period was sufficient.

The Contracts Manager responded that there were similar models in Greater 
Manchester, Scotland and in Wales.  Also, Bolton was in the process of rolling 
out its waste system.  The Council had carried out extensive research and 
had sought to follow similar models.

The Senior Manager: Marketing and Communications reported that 
consultation would involve advertising through the local media, knocking on 
doors and going into schools.  There would be stalls on local markets, there 
would be full use of social media and emails would be sent to those residents 
on the Council’s data base.

Councillor A Sykes queried landfill tax per tonne.  He was aware that 
significant amounts of money could be made from increasing recycling rates.  
Consequently, he asked why the Council had not considered keeping the 
green bins being used now and also progressing food waste recycling.  Why 
was this not an option?

The Contracts Manager responded that in order to encourage people to use 
the correct bins and increase their recycling it was necessary to squeeze the 
capacity out of the green bins.

Page 9



The Head of Environment and Regulation informed that Wirral’s recycling rate 
was currently between 36 and 37%.  A lot of work had been carried out 
around making the refuse collection system the Council had, work better.  
Food could be added but without the final step of constraining residual waste 
capacity Wirral could not achieve a 50% recycling rate.

Councillor D Burgess-Joyce referred to fly tipping and people putting their 
rubbish in other people’s bins.  He asked whether there were plans to evoke 
some type of sanctions.  

The Contracts Manager informed that where Officers came across this 
behaviour they would take appropriate action.  They would also help people 
who needed additional capacity e.g. large families.

The Head of Environment and Regulation informed that, as part of the 
introduction of any new collection, it was essential that the Council reviewed 
its policy on enforcement.  Aspects of detail would require further work before 
the project was taken forward.

Councillor A Sykes was of the opinion that local authorities who had high 
recycling rates did not have three weekly refuse collections.  He asked 
whether the best practice of local authorities across the country had been 
shared rather than just the best practice of the Council’s partners and 
neighbours e.g. the other Merseyside Authorities. 

The Head of Environment and Regulation reported that part of the work 
around the outline business case had involved looking at the practices of 
different sizes of local authorities, with different concerns, characteristics and 
demographics.  It was also important to consider the working practices of 
other Metropolitan Borough Councils similar to Wirral e.g. the Manchester 
Authorities.

The Head of Environment and Regulation informed that one of Wirral’s real 
strengths was dried recycling in one bin – the grey bin.  Some Council’s did 
not operate in this way.  The Council was in a fortunate position and it had 
driven participation.  The Contracts Manager agreed that the Council did have 
a convenient system in Wirral.

Councillor A Leech referred to a food waste trial that had been carried out 
previously and the Head of Environment and Regulation confirmed that the 
Council had trialled a food waste collection system in the West Wirral area 
during 2007/08.  The results of it were that there was not enough food going 
into the chemical composter.  There had been a poor response so the trial 
had been unsuccessful.

However, this time the Head of Environment and Regulation informed that 
there would be a collection purely for food on its own.

Page 10



Councillor C Muspratt informed that she was concerned about the food 
collection and asked if she was correct in thinking that the Council could not 
levy a charge for a food waste collection by law.  The Contracts Manager 
responded confirming that Councillor Muspratt was correct in her assumption.

The Chair thanked each of the three Decision Taker’s Witnesses for attending 
the meeting and answering questions.

Summing up by each of the Lead Signatories

The Chair then invited the two Lead Signatory to the call-in to summarise the 
key points they had made.

Councillor S Kelly 
Councillor S Kelly summed up by reminding the Committee that Wirral must 
improve its recycling levels which had dropped over recent years, mainly due 
to the charge being levied for brown bin collections.
Councillor S Kelly informed that if the Council really wanted to promote 
recycling and, in particular, methods of separating food waste from green bins 
it should be engaging with those who would had to make the systems work - 
local residents. The Council should also be aware that one size would not fit 
all areas in Wirral and it should be looking at bespoke solutions for different 
communities to increase recycling.  It should working with local communities 
on solutions rather than just imposing three weekly collections on them.

Councillor S Kelly was aware that the Council had sent nothing to landfill 
since October 2015.  Therefore, it would not pay landfill tax as it had met the 
target.  The priority was to ask why people could not put recyclable materials 
into their grey recycling bin. He informed that there was a lot of fly tipping in 
his ward because of the capacity of the green bin.

Work was required to educate people about food waste.  Adding in the 
volume of the bin to the equation only confused matters.  It was too much too 
soon.  Councillor S Kelly informed that he had looked at waste recycling in 
Bury and in Edinburgh.  There had been a five year gap before food recycling 
had been introduced.

Councillor S Kelly sought clarity around the questions people would be asked 
during the public consultation process and asked what would happen if Wirral 
people rejected both of the options.

Councillor I Lewis
Councillor I Lewis informed that he would also be interested in the responses 
to the consultation.  He had concerns over the nature of the questions and the 
length of the consultation period and why some people were not recycling.  
He asked whether those not recycling would take part in the consultation. 
Councillor I Lewis queried whether the right people could be reached in a six 
week period in the summer.  If the questions did not involve yes and no 

Page 11



answers they would be open to interpretation.  Councillor Lewis reinforced his 
question.  If people were not recycling now, were they really interested 
enough to take part in the consultation exercise?

Summing up by the Cabinet Member – Environment, Councillor B 
Mooney

The Chair then invited the Cabinet Member to summarise the key points she 
had made.
Councillor B Mooney responded by informing the Committee that she had 
found the debate very interesting and considered that those in attendance at 
the meeting had learnt a lot about waste from it. Waste was a very interesting 
and complex subject.

Councillor Mooney reaffirmed that the Council could not do nothing, that was 
not an option.  It had to move forward by going out to consultation requesting 
views on the two options.  It was very important that waste was removed from 
green bins.  If the Council was going to meet targets it needed to consult on 
its proposals.

Councillor Mooney referred to the experience from Leasowe which served to 
illustrate that putting resources into knocking on doors helped to make 
progress.  She informed that education would be right at the heart of the 
consultation exercise.  There would be information leaflets and education 
videos produced and work would be carried out in the constituency areas to 
make people aware of the need to recycle more. The Council needed to 
encourage people to recycle as soon as possible and was prepared to do 
whatever it could to increase recycling. It was about behavioural change and 
telling people what they could and could not recycle.

Committee Debate

The Chair then opened up the call-in meeting for general debate by Members 
of the Committee.

Councillor S Foulkes informed that he hoped that what he had heard during 
the meeting would be similar to the level of the debate that would take place 
in individual households across the Wirral.  He was reassured that all of the 
comments received through the consultation process would be taken into 
consideration.  Councillor Foulkes considered that, since the introduction of 
the wheelie bins, Wirral had one of the best collection services in the country.

Councillor S Foulkes also informed that there was a significant advantage in 
what was being proposed and was of the view that food waste must be 
tackled.  Putting food waste in the green bin attracted maggots and flies. The 
proposal was to issue a separate sealed container and he was confident 
Officers had taken advice on this.  He was aware of the difficulty in moving 

Page 12



from a two week to a three week refuse collection.  Councillor Foulkes gave 
notice that he wished to propose a Motion.

Councillor A Sykes informed that the key issue was that the proposed 
consultation period was six weeks rather than twelve weeks.  This was 
particularly worrying as it was intended to consult during August. He 
considered that the consultation should be of a qualitative nature and provide 
the opportunity for people to say what they wanted to about the proposals. 
There needed to be proper consultation which was interpreted correctly.  
What was being proposed was weak consultation.  Food collection needed to 
be tackled but he questioned whether it should be part of the wider 
consultation.

Councillor S Foulkes read out his Motion as follows:

That

(1) having reflected on the evidence provided and subsequent debate this 
Committee believes that the current arrangements for consultation 
regarding the Domestic Refuse Collection Outline Business Case are 
appropriate; 

(2) this Committee looks forward to a qualitative analysis and scrutiny of all 
the comments received; and

(3) this Committee, therefore, upholds the Cabinet’s decision.  

Councillor C Muspratt seconded the Motion.

Councillor A Sykes indicated that he wished to move an amendment but 
accepted the advice of the Head of Legal and Member Services that what he 
intended to move negated the Motion that was being considered and so was 
unable to move it.

The Motion was put to the vote and carried (8 for, 6 against).

RESOLVED: That

(1) having reflected on the evidence provided and subsequent debate 
this Committee believes that the current arrangements for 
consultation regarding the Domestic Refuse Collection Outline 
Business Case are appropriate; 

(2) this Committee looks forward to a qualitative analysis and 
scrutiny of all the comments received; and

(3) this Committee, therefore, upholds the Cabinet’s decision.  

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 21 September 2016

Present: Councillor P Brightmore (Chair)

Councillors S Foulkes
T Jones
J McManus
C Muspratt
L Reecejones
T Usher
J Walsh

I Williams
T Anderson
B Berry
T Pilgrim
C Carubia
D Burgess-Joyce 
W Clements

Deputies:

Councillor D Burgess-Joyce (in place of Councillor L Rowlands)
Councillor W Clements (in place of Councillor A Sykes)

12 CHAIRS ANNOUNCEMENTS 

The Chair welcomed all to the meeting and indicated that in relation to Item 3 
– Work Programme Workshop Feedback this would be considered together at 
Item 9 – Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee – Work Programme 
Update.

13 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST / 
PARTY WHIP 

Councillor S Foulkes declared a Personal Interest in Item 7 – Financial 
Monitoring Quarter 1 2016/17 by virtue of his appointment of Board Director of 
Magenta Living.

14 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors L Rowlands and A 
Sykes.

15 MINUTES 

RESOLVED:

That the Minutes of the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee held 
on 18 July 2016 be approved as a correct record.

Page 15



16 MINUTE 4 - FLOOD AND WATER MANAGEMENT ACT: SIGNIFICANT 
FLOOD INVESTIGATION: AUGUST 22ND TO SEPTEMBER 2ND 2015 

Further to the Minutes of the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee   
(Minute 4 refers). 

Councillor Muspratt sought clarification as to whether the properties she had 
given details of at the last meeting which had been affected by flooding in 
Bebington had been included within the Section 19 report.

In response, the Head of Corporate and Community Safety responded to the 
Member indicating that the Section 19 Report did not refer to every property in 
detail but those that she had highlighted at the last meeting were included 
within the action plan.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

17 MINUTE 10 - WORK PROGRAMME 

Further to minute 10 from the meeting held on 10 July 2016, the Chair 
indicated that following his suggestion and Members agreement that a more 
inclusive approach be adopted by the Committee, all Members were invited to 
take part in a workshop which had taken place on 1 September 2016.

18 TRANSFORMING WIRRAL - COMMUNITY SAFETY 

Further to Minute No. 6 of the meeting held on 12 July 2016, the Committee 
considered the report of the Chair of the Committee updating Members of the 
outcome from the workshop held on 1 September 2016 which was attended 
by Members of the Committee to discuss the approach to the outline business 
case in relation to Community Safety

The outcomes from the workshop were detailed within the report.

A Member suggested that the report be shared and discussed with the Chair 
of the People Overview and Scrutiny Committee given that safeguarding and 
MASH were mentioned as they also came under the remit of People Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee.

RESOLVED: That 

(1) the report be noted;

(2) the report be referred to a future meeting of the Cabinet; and  

(3) further consideration be given to the optimal timing for the 
involvement of scrutiny in the development of future business 
cases.

Page 16



19 FUTURE DOMESTIC REFUSE COLLECTION SERVICE - PRESENTATION 

The Committee considered a joint presentation from Mr Carl Beer, Chief 
Executive, Merseyside Recycling and Waste Authority and Mr Mike Cockburn, 
Senior Manager Waste & Environment; Environmental Services on the future 
domestic refuse collection services.   

Mr Beer gave the Committee some background information on the joint 
recycling and waste management strategy indicating that the current strategy 
was five years old and was currently under review.

He commented that the Authority was currently working with Merseytravel on 
the potential for using food waste to generate biogas, which can be used as a 
vehicle fuel. 

Mr Beer indicated that up to 85% of the material delivered by householders to 
Household Waste Recycling Centres was re-used or recycled. Two Materials 
Recovery Facilities (MRFs) at Bidston and Gillmoss sorted the co-mingled 
recyclates collected by Merseyside Councils; refuse not recycled is now being 
sent to a Rail Transfer Loading Station at Kirkby, and then on trains to the 
Energy from Waste plant in Wilton, Teesside.

He explained that the Wilton Energy from Waste plant is a combined heat and 
power (CHP) facility had been commissioned by MRWA for Merseyside and 
Halton authorities through the Resource Recovery Contract (RRC). It is 
anticipated that this would be fully operational by October/November 2016.

The Authority supported various community projects via its Community Fund 
with the aim to encourage people to recycle and re-use, giving advice and 
guidance. 

The presentation detailed the comparative recycling rates across the 
neighbouring Authorities, with Wirral comparing well against neighbouring 
authorities.

In relation to residual waste, Mr Beer commented that it costs more to 
disposal of non-recycling waste than it does for recycling and therefore 
incurred a higher levy charge. The Wirral kerbside waste results for 2015/16 
indicated that residual waste was the highest, of which 36% being food waste 
and 13% being avoidable food waste. He indicated that 5.5% of all kerbside 
waste was potentially reusable. According to the ACORN figures the most 
deprived areas of the borough had the highest percentage of avoidable food 
wastage.

Page 17



Mr Beer concluded his presentation by highlighting the Authority’s collection 
strategy considerations and future plans which included waste prevention, 
recycling and re-use targets.

Following on from Mr Beer’s presentation, the Committee received a 
presentation from Mr Mike Cockburn, Senior Manager Waste & Environment 
on the options for future domestic refuse collection services in Wirral.

Mr Cockburn highlighted the rationale for change which included the 
obligation to increase recycling rates to 50% by 2020 and the need for a major 
system change to meet the target.

Mr Cockburn gave Members an overview of the options and informed that the 
outline business case was agreed by Cabinet who instructed officers to carry 
out a full business case to be considered by Cabinet in early November 2016. 
He further outlined that the full business case is being delivered internally but 
would also be scrutinised externally by waste industry experts.

Mr Cockburn concluded by highlighting the project outcomes, cost benefit 
analysis and the implementation plan.

In response to a Members question regarding target figures for recycling, Mr 
Beer explained that the national UK figure was agreed with Europe, with a five 
year strategy to reach 50% by 2020. He commented that Wirral had set its 
own 50% target but there was not clear how the Government intends to 
administer the target. Europe had stated that, as a member state, the UK 
would be fined for those targets not met, but there was no information to say 
that the UK as a whole would fail to reach the target. Given the vote on Brexit 
this may change.

In response to Members comments regarding the reported reduction in 
recycling rates from 2013/2014 through to 2015/16, Mr Cockburn indicated 
that this was due to the introduction of subscriptions for the garden waste 
collection service; people not taking up garden waste subscriptions had driven 
down the recycling the Council’s performance by approximately 4%.

In response to a Member’s question regarding the segregation of waste, Mr 
Beer indicated that card and paper could easily be done and prices for those 
materials were good, but some types of hard plastic would be difficult to 
separate and command only a very low market price. In the current market it 
was not value for money and therefore there was not a strong case to do this.

In relation to the facilities that use waste to make gas and energy, Mr Beer 
indicated that the MRWA organises this for a number of local councils. The 
current facility is based in Halton and treats food waste by Anaerobic 
Digestion.

Page 18



Mr Beer indicated that in relation to clothing waste, commodity prices rise and 
fall therefore there was a lot of wastage; the biggest carbon footprint was from 
textiles thrown into refuse. This was largely down to education. There was a 
need to inform people of the best way to dispose of their unwanted 
textiles/clothes encouraging them to recycle by giving them to charity shops 
etc. There was also a need to increase the opportunities for people to donate. 
He indicated there was a small community fund available and asked the 
Members to think about those organisations who could help the Authority with 
its Waste Strategy.

In response to a Members question, Mr Cockburn indicated that officers within 
the department would be building up the approach to the preferred option, 
making sure it was high profile and highlighting the fact that Wirral was not the 
first authority to do this; there would be a huge consultation/communication 
drive, advertising etc. There would be increased support for residents during 
the roll out.

Mr Beer reiterated the importance of that public engagement and commented 
feedback to residents was key. 

In relation to producer responsibility there were calls to enhance this for e.g. 
reduction in packaging, Government were currently being asked to consider 
options including moving more  costs from  Local Authorities to  producers.

RESOLVED:

That Mr C Beer and Mr M Cockburn be thanked for their informative 
presentation. 

20 WIRRAL PLAN OVERVIEW REPORT: 2016-17 QUARTER 1 – 
ENVIRONMENT THEME 

Introduced by the Team Leader – Performance and Scrutiny, the Committee 
considered the report of the Assistant Chief Executive on the Wirral Plan 
Overview Report 2016-17, that described performance at Quarter 1 (April to 
June 2016). The report outlined the Wirral Plan Pledges (Environment 
Theme) focused on high level population measures and described progress 
towards making a difference to the lives of Wirral residents.

The report provided a summary of highlights and the Wirral Plan Quarter One 
2016-17 Overview report was appended to the report.

The Chair indicated that following comments received over the confusing 
nature of the report and the need for Members to see what was relevant to 
this Committee. 

Page 19



The Chair sought the Committee’s approval for himself, the vice-chair and 
party spokespersons to meet with representatives of both the People and 
Business Overview and Scrutiny Committees in the format of a special 
meeting to consider the overview report format.

The Team Leader, Performance and Scrutiny referred to the Members 
briefing held on 7 September 2016 to which 22 Members had been in 
attendance and that he was keen to take any further feedback to ensure 
future reporting on the indicators was pertinent and clear. He indicated that 
the People Overview and Scrutiny Committee had recently resolved that the 
Chairs and Party spokespersons from the three Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees should meet to discuss the approach

The Team Leader – Performance and Scrutiny indicated that in relation to 
initial feedback received on the new arrangements, comments had been 
positive in terms of the narrative and he welcomed further feedback from 
Members.

Responding to Members’ comments The Team Leader, Performance and 
Scrutiny, reported that more detailed reports on performance were available 
on the website, and these had been circulated to the Committee at the 
meeting. With regard to those items whose status was marked, ‘Not started’ 
although their status for the current period was marked as, ‘Green’, he would 
look into this and respond by email to the whole Committee. 

In relation to the indicator in relation to “healthy life expectancy at birth: 
males”, the Team Leader, Performance and Scrutiny agreed to provide further 
details on this to Members.

In relation to the indicator relating to “fixed penalty notices” the Assistant Chief 
Executive indicated that he would provide details of the breakdown of the 
nature of the notices issued and in which areas they were issued.
 
In relation to the indicator relating to “anti-social behaviour and crime 
reporting”, the Assistant Chief Executive indicated that this was the only 
indicator made available to officers but reiterated that anti-social behaviour 
was a very important issue for the Council.

A Member commented that the pledge sponsor should be identified within the 
report this would add a personal touch to the pledges.

RESOLVED: That

(1)  the report be noted; and 

(2) the Chair, Vice-Chair and Party Spokespersons be requested to 
meet with representatives of both the People and Business 

Page 20



Overview and Scrutiny Committees in the format of a special 
meeting to consider the overview report format.

21 FINANCIAL MONITORING QUARTER 1 2016/17 

The Committee considered the report of the Assistant Chief Executive which 
provided the projected revenue and capital position for 2016/17 as at the 
close of Quarter 1 (30 June 2016) as reported to Cabinet on 18 July 2016 
(Minute 26 and 27 refers).

The Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee noted that the quarter 
one revenue report had forecast an overspend of £1.1 million for the year and 
had sought approval from Cabinet for the allocation of £11.1 million from the 
Revenue Contingency Budget contingency to Directorates and similarly the 
use of £1.6 million of General Fund Balances. The report also updated on 
other budgetary movements which had arisen since the 2016/17 budget was 
agreed. 

The Committee further noted that the capital report had updated the capital 
programme to reflect re-profiling of schemes between years which produces a 
capital programme of £58.97 million for 2016/17 and that expenditure after the 
first quarter concluded was £2.7 million.

RESOLVED: 

That the report and appendices be noted.

22 POLICY INFORM BRIEFING PAPER 

The Chair introduced a report on the September Policy Inform Briefing paper 
which focussed on the policies and legislation to emerge from the Queen’s 
speech of 18 May, 2016 and which were relevant to this Committee’s remit.

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

23 ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - WORK 
PROGRAMME UPDATE 

The Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee noted the report of the 
Chair that updated Members on the current position regarding the 
Committee’s work programme as agreed for the 2016/17 municipal year.

Page 21



The report informed on the process of developing and managing the scrutiny 
work programme for the municipal year. Members noted that the Environment 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee, in cooperation with the other two Overview & 
Scrutiny Committees, was responsible for proposing and delivering an annual 
work programme and that the work programme should align with the 
corporate priorities of the Council, in particular the delivery of the Wirral Plan 
pledges which fell within the remit of the Committee. 

Members noted that the report provided an update regarding progress made 
since the last Committee meeting held on 18 July 2016 and that the current 
work programme was made up of a combination of scrutiny reviews, standing 
items and requested officer reports, providing the committee with an 
opportunity to plan and regularly review its work across the municipal year. 

A Member asked that for future presentations, a copy be sent to the 
Committee in advance of the meeting.

RESOLVED:

That the Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee work programme 
for 2016/17 be approved.

Page 22



SPECIAL MEETING OF 
ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE
Wednesday, 9 November 2016

Present: Councillor P Brightmore (Chair)

Councillors S Foulkes
J McManus
C Muspratt
L Reecejones
T Usher
J Walsh
I Williams

A Sykes
T Anderson
B Berry
C Carubia
A Leech (In place of T Jones)
C Blakeley (In place of T Pilgrim)
A Hodson (In place of L Rowlands)

24 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST / 
PARTY WHIP 

No such declarations were made.

25 COMMUNITY PATROL SERVICES 

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and outlined the procedure to 
be adopted in respect of the matter under consideration, reading out the 
requisition notice for the benefit of those members of the public in attendance.

The Managing Director for Delivery introduced his report that had been 
prepared in response to Members’ enquiry into an allegation that the Council’s 
Community Patrol service had undertaken security checks at private 
premises. The report also provided information on the roles and duties of the 
Community Patrol Service. 

Reference was made to a number of report paragraphs 3.4 [part of] to 3.7 that 
were inadvertently omitted from the initial agenda paper distribution. Copies of 
the relevant paragraphs were circulated and Members agreed to accept these 
with the report.

A Member explained that the matter for calling this meeting had been raised, 
not to attack the Community Patrol Service, but to shed light on the allegation 
of ‘free security’. He also relayed his disappointment at the length of time it 
had taken to bring this matter to the attention of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.

Page 23



The Managing Director for Delivery informed that Wirral Community Patrol 
delivers a paid for service undertaking security checks across a range of 
premises and locations. Some of the premises are private and the typical 
Service Level Agreement (Contract) requires a physical patrol to proactively 
visit a location up to 5 times per week depending what level of SLA they had 
signed up to. As a result, the patrol service is often in a position to be able to 
drive-by identified ASB ‘hot spot’ locations without varying too dramatically 
from their route. He further informed that the allegation from an anonymous 
employee made to a Councillor stating that the Council’s Community Patrol 
Service were providing ‘free security services’ to Sherlock House, Manor 
Road, Wallasey should be viewed in context to other requests, and as no 
different to many other requests for Community Patrol assistance.

The report explained that to enable Members to understand the amount of 
time Community Patrol spent on ‘drive-bys’ of Sherlock House the Head of 
Community Safety and Transport Services undertook an interrogation of the 
patrol officers GPS and work data. The outcome of which highlighted the 
following:

 During the 21 day period between the 13 July and the 9 August 
Community Patrol undertook 29 ‘drive-bys’ of Sherlock House (some 
days received multiple visits – weekends, etc).

 No ‘drive-by’ exceeded 3 minutes in real time at the location.

 In comparing the number of ‘drive-bys’ undertaken at Sherlock House 
against a randomly selected 21 different days, measured between 
March and August 2016, 229 ‘drive-bys’ to hotspots were recorded on 
these days.

As such, the report concluded that whilst data was unable to provide an 
accurate picture of the impact, what could be confirmed was that Sherlock 
House did not receive any preferential treatment,  in either prioritisation as a 
‘hotspot’ location or in terms of numbers of ‘drive-bys’.

Discussion took place regarding the number of service level agreements, 
location of the building in question, recording of the report (notified by whom? 
and when?) and the subject of ‘drive by’ terminology and procedures.

The Head of Community Safety and Transport Services informed the 
committee that working as part of a multi-agency team, the incident in 
question had been raised initially by the Police, and that the site was also in 
close proximity to Liscard Town Centre which is known to be a ‘hotspot’ 
location. He further informed the Committee that Council’s Community Safety 
Officers and Police Officers use very similar terminology but not always the 
same and ‘drive-by’ was commonly understood language to both agencies. 
He also reported that the service had recently undergone a restructure and 

Page 24



that given the direction of travel in terms of the new 2020 pledge and move 
towards a more integrated service, procedures were being checked, and 
copies of relevant procedures would be provided to Members subsequent to 
this meeting.

The Head of Community Safety and Transport Services informed the 
Committee that the Community Safety Patrol vehicles were each fitted with 
GPS, enabling records to be checked regarding locations visited and the 
times spent at this site. He also informed that during the course of regular 
patrolling the Council’s Community Patrol Officers would, by the very nature of 
their routing, pass by private properties. This would further provide a high 
visibility, high profile deterrent covering a broader security service than for just 
Council owned assets or indeed of what the police alone could provide.

The Chair reminded those present that discussion should focus on the matter 
as raised within the meeting requisition.

A Member referred to e-mail correspondence regarding the ‘drive-bys’ to 
private properties and current procedures / protocols for charging, requesting 
further clarification to ensure that the Council was not moving away from 
agreed procedures.

The Head of Community Safety and Transport Services referred to the report 
informing that the Community Patrol Service also offered a paid-for security 
and alarm monitoring services to a wide customer base, both public sector 
and private via some 138 Service Level Agreements (SLAs) – tailored to suit 
requirements - delivering an important income generation role for the Council. 
He further informed that although ‘drive-bys’ did not involve Patrol Staff 
leaving their vehicles, the intelligence gathered as a result of reporting of 
incidents and general update reports on a daily basis provided valuable 
information in the identification of ‘hotspots’ and the ultimate reduction in ASB. 

Answering a question from a Member about how a ‘hot spot’ location was 
decided, the Head of Community Safety and Transport Services explained 
that ‘Hot Spots’ were selected by the number of complaints/reports received 
by the Police and or the Council about a specific location. He noted that 
similar intelligence reporting was provided from Ward Councillors and this 
intelligence would also be added to the ‘rich picture’ of what constitutes a ‘hot 
spot’. .   
  
Discussion took place regarding public sector partnership working and how 
the arrangements currently in place were of benefit to all, in terms of helping 
alleviate the impact of financial cuts to the Police and the Council, and 
identification of ‘hotspot’ locations – helping target resources to best effect. 
This included the reporting of fly-tipping, graffiti etc. 

Page 25



A Member asked if Sherlock House had been contacted to inform that a 
private service (SLA) was available? The Committee was apprised that this 
was not current practice, but should a request be forthcoming, information on 
the services available would be provided. The Head of Community Safety & 
Transport Services reminded the Committee that Community Patrol ‘drive-bys’ 
were as a result of locality ASB and not as a security service to any property 
at that location.

A Member asked about the number of times the Police instruct the 
Community Patrol Service to take action, and how often did others make 
similar requests. The Head of Community Safety and Transport Services 
advised that reports were received from the Police and Ward Councillors 
regarding anti-social behaviour, and this information was collated to identify 
‘hotspots’. He informed that, using the Cherry Tree Centre as an example, 
Community Patrol respond to the location, as opposed to individual 
businesses.

A Member questioned whether the murder of Jo Cox, MP had affected how 
Community Service Patrols had operated i.e. why a broken window 
constituted the need for a ‘drive-by’. The Head of Community Safety and 
Transport Services explained that the security of MP’s was a responsibility 
that fell to the Home Office and therefore the Police, but that Liscard as a 
location was the ‘hotspot’ issue, not specifically Sherlock House.

A Member asked if an area is identified as a ‘hotspot’ and problems continue 
beyond 6 weeks, would this then be classified as in need of a Service Level 
Agreement. The Head of Community Safety and Transport Services informed 
that should anti-social behaviour extend beyond the normal 6 weeks 
maximum period for ‘drive-bys’ a multi-agency approach would be 
undertaken, which would include talking with local businesses as to their 
responsibilities. This had been the approach taken in parts of Birkenhead.

Members then discussed the trigger points for ‘drive-by’ patrols, priorities 
given to incidents of fighting, ASB and property damage, and missed 
opportunities to increase revenue as a result. Confusion still existed regarding 
what people were getting for free, and entitlements to ‘drive-bys’. In an 
attempt to clarify this the Head of Community Safety and Transport Services 
explained that ‘drive-bys’ could be viewed as a community related response to 
ASB in a specific location. The Drive-By patrols were intended to offer a 
deterrent to further ASB and also to collect intelligence from those areas. 
These are free as they are delivered as part of the wider community safety 
responsibility for the Council. An SLA was a specific request for security 
service, with alarm monitoring and alarm response and is a contractual 
arrangement. 

Page 26



The Managing Director for Delivery noted Members comments and confirmed 
that this service would definitely be looked at as part of the Council’s 
commercial / income generation programme.  

A Member pointed out that should a business decide to enter into an SLA they 
often get positive outcomes e.g. reduce insurance premiums 

Further discussion took place regarding the Council’s transformation agenda, 
restructuring, customer engagement, enhancing the service, generating 
income and ensuring the process was managed effectively. All Members 
agreed that the Community Patrol Service provided a highly valued and 
visible presence, wishing to see it enhanced, without losing sight of its primary 
function. Mention was made to Magenta Housing and how ASB was handled 
in these localities. A Member commented that Magenta used to have an SLA 
but withdrew it, expressing his view that they now have their own ASB team.

It was: 

Proposed by Councillor C Blakely
Seconded by Councillor A Hodson 

“That a Task and Finish Group be established to carry out a full review of 
Community Patrol Services and report back to the Environment Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee”.

A vote was put and lost (5:10)

It was then:

Proposed by Councillor S Foulkes
Seconded by Councillor A Leech

“That this Committee notes the report, and commends the work of the 
Community Patrol Service across the borough in reducing levels of anti-social 
behaviour. Committee would welcome any initiatives that raise the income 
from the private sector to support its work as part of ongoing scrutiny of this 
valued service”.
 
RESOLVED: (unanimously) - That 

1) this Committee notes the report; and

2) the Committee commends the work of the Community Patrol 
across the borough in reducing anti-social behaviour; and

Page 27



3) as part of ongoing scrutiny of this valued service, the Committee 
would welcome any initiatives that raise the income from the 
private sector to support the work of the Community Patrol.

Page 28



LIBERAL DEMOCRAT GROUP  -   NOTICE OF MOTION

for Council on 17 October 2016
submitted on 30 September 2016

to:
copied to:

Surjit Tour
Andrew Mossop

Proposed by: Cllr Phil Gilchrist

Seconded by: Cllr Stuart Kelly

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT – REPORTING ARRANGMENTS

Council notes:

1. the training session on the arrangements for Performance Management held on 7 September 
2016, attended by a wide range of Members across all parties, at which Members were
informed regarding the range of indicators chosen for future reports based on the progress with 
the Wirral Plan;

2. the concern expressed at that meeting that these reports and proposed indicators do not cover 
the range of established indicators that Council Members have always followed and expected to 
see, such as progress with staff appraisals, the level of staff sickness and absence and other 
issues;

3. that many Members at the training session made the case for a wider range of indicators to 
show how Council services are performing;

4. that the former Families and Wellbeing Policy & Performance Committee received performance 
monitoring data on a range of indicators that are and remain sensitive and significant in the light 
of OFSTED’s recent findings.

Council, therefore, requests that:

(i) as the data is still being collected and analysed by officers, a set of such wider indicators should 
be presented to Members on a regular basis;

(ii) accompanying quarterly performance data, there should also be information as to the target 
expected in that quarter, in addition to the year end and Plan end (2020) target;

(iii) the choice of indicators needs to be relevant to the 2020 pledge and undertakes to review those 
indicators chosen to measure pledge success prior to reporting for Quarter 2 performance;

Page 29

Agenda Item 3



(iv) officers report to each Overview and Scrutiny committee the ‘added value’ expected for those 
indicators that have been included within the 2020 Vision Plan and, in respect of indicators 
flagged as under or over preforming, additional information and actions proposed in respect of 
those indicators.

In order to secure a transparent and open review, Members should be invited to submit details of 
the key areas that they wish to see reported upon by the end of October.

The Spokespersons of each of the newly created Overview and Scrutiny Committees should be 
requested to examine these suggestions and ensure a sufficient, timely and readily accessible 
mechanism for such data in future reports.

Page 30



Meeting: Full Council 
Date: Monday 17th October 2016
Notice of Motion: Recognising the contribution of our Friends Groups
Proposed by: Cllr. Lesley Rennie
Seconded by: Cllr. Paul Hayes 

Council recognises the value and importance of Wirral’s parks and open spaces and 
welcomes the valuable contribution made by Council staff and volunteers and 
Friends Groups. 

Council celebrates the recent achievement of ‘Green Flag Awards’ for parks and 
open spaces in Wallasey, including:

 Harrison Park
 North Wirral Coastal Park
 Wallasey Cemetery

Council therefore instructs the Chief Executive to write to all successful Friends 
Groups in Wirral to reaffirm our commitment and support for the valuable work they 
undertake.

Page 31

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL’S LEISURE
STRATEGY

THE WIRRAL PARTNERSHIP

Page 33

Agenda Item 6



THE WIRRAL PARTNERSHIP

CONTENTS

FoREWoRd   4

INTRodUCTIoN To THE STRATEGY  6

FANTASTIC WAYS To ENJoY LEISURE TIME IN WIRRAL   8

WHAT WE KNoW ABoUT oUR RESIdENTS ANd VISIToRS 10

oUR PRIoRITIES  

1. Promote and celebrate Wirral’s parks, coast and countryside for leisure activities   13

2. Encourage people to take part in sports, leisure and social activities           16

3. Increase pride in Wirral’s communities and encourage more residents to volunteer  19

HoW WE WILL dELIVER THE STRATEGY  22

ACTIoN PLANS    24

CoNCLUSIoN   27

REFERENCES   28

2 Page 34



3

WIRRAL’S LEISURE STRATEGY

Page 35



 

THE WIRRAL PLAN: A 2020 VISIoN

FOREWORD

Councillor Chris Meaden 
Cabinet Member – Leisure and Culture

4

I am delighted to introduce this five-year leisure 
strategy developed in collaboration with a 
range of partner organisations.

Wirral is a fantastic place for people to live, work 
and enjoy their leisure time.  As the Cabinet 
member responsible for leisure, sport and 
culture, I am extremely proud of the diverse 
opportunities available in our borough. 

Where-else in the UK can you take a leisurely 
walk to a place as special as Hilbre Island to  
watch grey seals, rare coastal birds and other 
wildlife and then, just a short journey away, visit 
the world’s first public park in Birkenhead, the 
inspiration for the world-famous Central Park in 
New York?

As a peninsula, our coastline is a remarkable 
asset. New Brighton has the longest 
promenade in the country and Wirral has some 
of the UK’s most beautiful beaches, including 
the only three in the North West to receive the 
highest recommended rating in the Good 
Beach Guide. Our parks and countryside also 
continue to impress, with many awarded 
nationally-acclaimed ‘Green Flag’ status – the 
result of a huge effort from many residents 
including local community organisations, 
volunteers and our friends groups.  

Our ambition through this strategy is to 
leverage these natural assets,  encourage more 
people to get involved in  a wider array of 
leisure activities , and, in doing so, build on the 
community and volunteer spirit that contributes 
so much to Wirral.

We want to support our residents in staying 
active and healthy through taking part in 
leisure, sport and social activities. We are proud 
that many of the ways our residents choose to 

spend their leisure time are accessible for all 
regardless of income, age or ability.  However, 
we know some residents face real obstacles to 
taking part in leisure activities including health 
conditions, or just a lack of confidence or 
encouragement to get involved.  This strategy 
will also look at ways to tackle these barriers 
and encourage more people to participate in 
leisure to improve their overall health and 
wellbeing. 

The financial challenges the public sector faces 
are well documented and the Council and our 
partners will have significantly less money to 
spend by the end of this five-year strategy. This 
means it is more important than ever to work in 
partnership with the public, private, voluntary 
and community sectors to deliver the ambitions 
set out in this strategy. 

The Council’s role in relation to leisure will 
therefore, in future, be one that enables and 
secures the provision of leisure facilities within 
the borough rather than being a direct 
provider.  It is essential that we focus our 
limited resources on delivering the best 
possible outcomes for our residents across all 
the Wirral Plan pledges. We will therefore have 
to look at ways we can reduce our expenditure, 
whilst at the same time exploring opportunities 
to deliver our services differently and in 
partnership with others to ensure our priorities 
within this plan are achieved.

I encourage you to take the time to read this 
leisure strategy and I look forward to working 
with you to deliver its ambition to secure a 
range of quality and diverse leisure activities for 
our residents and visitors to enjoy for many 
years to come.

Page 36



5

WIRRAL’S LEISURE STRATEGY

“ Get your walking boots out -   
 Wirral Way is a great way to   
 blow away the cobwebs”
 Sue and Brian from derbyshire, November 2015

Page 37



THE WIRRAL PLAN: A 2020 VISIoN

INTRODUCTION

The Wirral Plan sets out a commitment to 
work together over the next five years and 
beyond to achieve the outcomes in the 20 Pledges 
for 2020; one of which includes encouraging more 
Wirral residents and visitors to enjoy our leisure, 
culture and sporting opportunities more often. 

our Wirral Plan pledge states:

We will encourage more people to enjoy the 
wide range of leisure, culture and sporting 
opportunities on offer across Wirral. We will 
listen to residents’ ideas and requests, and 
by 2020, will have increased access to events 
and activities to all our residents, regardless 
of age or income. 

6 Page 38



7

WIRRAL’S LEISURE STRATEGY

In order to achieve this pledge we are working 
with a wide range of partners and stakeholders 
to review private and public leisure provision in 
Wirral, to make it fit for today and the future.  

The leisure strategy will contribute to all 20 
Wirral Plan pledges and will specifically link 
across to our strategies for health, culture and 
tourism. This will ensure they complement each 
other and provide the ambition and aims to 
achieve and deliver our agreed outcomes. 

The purpose of the strategy

We recognise that leisure means different 
things to different people.  Leisure time is 
about having fun and enjoying free time away 
from work and other tasks; it can be spent 
enjoying quality time with family and friends at 
one of our many parks or beaches, playing a 
game of golf, going to a local football match, or 
simply attending a social event. 

There are a range of organisations that provide 
leisure services and facilities across Wirral. The 
aim of this strategy is to ensure that all Wirral 
residents and visitors are aware of the diverse, 
inclusive and accessible range of leisure 
opportunities which are fit for purpose and 
sustainable for the future. 

There are many reasons why people participate 
in leisure; some people get involved to improve 
their health and fitness, others enjoy the fun 
and social aspects of their leisure choices.  
Whatever the motivation, we know how 
important leisure activities are to our residents 
and we understand the positive contribution 
these activities have on our mental and 
physical health and wellbeing.  We want to 
inspire people to be more active and to 
increase  pride in our local communities and 
neighbourhoods.

We also know how important leisure is to 
supporting the local economy, creating jobs 
and making Wirral a great place to live and visit.  

our leisure priorities for Wirral over the 
next 5 years

This leisure strategy has been developed based 
on an understanding of what our local 
residents have told us is important to them 
through a range of research and insight work.  
The Wirral Resident Survey and Wirral Visitor 
Research Study helped us identify the leisure 
opportunities which  make Wirral a great place 
for residents and tourists to enjoy, and to 
enable us to explore how we can improve our 
leisure offer in the future. 

In addition, we have carried out detailed 
research and analysed key statistics and data 
from a range of sources, including Sport 
England and Active Lives, to ensure our 
priorities for leisure in Wirral are supported by 
a strong evidence base. The strategy supports 
the new national government strategy ‘Sporting 
Future: A New Strategy for an Active Nation’ 
which focuses on five key outcomes: physical 
wellbeing, mental wellbeing, individual 
development, social and community 
development and economic development.

The priorities to be delivered through this 
strategy and associated plans are:

• Promote and celebrate Wirral’s parks,   
 coast and countryside for leisure   
 activities.
• Encourage people to take part in   
 sports, leisure and social activities.
• Increase pride in Wirral’s communities   
 and encourage more residents to   
 volunteer.

In order to deliver the priorities outlined above, 
we are committed to working with a broad 
range of partners in the public, private, 
voluntary and community sectors to ensure the 
borough’s leisure and sporting opportunities 
are accessible and fit for purpose. 

Page 39



THE WIRRAL PLAN: A 2020 VISIoN

FANTASTIC WAYS
TO ENJOY LEISURE
TIME IN WIRRAL

8 Page 40



9

WIRRAL’S LEISURE STRATEGY

WIRRAL PENINSULA

The
Hive
TheThTheT
HiveHi

Motorway
Roads
Rail route
Train Station
Mersey Tunnel
Ferry Service
Country Park
Park
Visitor Centre
Suggested Viewpoint
Recommended 
Birdwatching Spot

Page 41



THE WIRRAL PLAN: A 2020 VISIoN

10

WHAT WE KNOW
ABOUT OUR 
RESIDENTS
AND VISITORS…

10

THE WIRRAL PLAN: A 2020 VISIoN

Page 42



PARKS, COASTS AND COUNTRYSIDE:

SPORT, LEISURE AND SOCIAL ACTIVITIES:

VOLUNTEERING/COMMUNITY PRIDE:

11

WIRRAL’S LEISURE STRATEGY

67%
OF RESIDENTS SAID THEY 
USE PARKS ANd GREEN 

SPACES AT LEAST
oNCE A MoNTH. 1

90%
SAID THEY USEd

PARKS ANd GREEN
SPACES WITHIN THE 

LAST YEAR.1

68%
OF VISITORS HIGHLIGHTED

THE BOROUGH’S NATURAL ASSETS 
AS THE REASON THEY VIEWED 

THE WIRRAL AS A BETTER THAN 
AVERAGE LOCATION TO VISIT. 2

59%
OF AdULTS IN WIRRAL ARE 

CLASSIFIEd AS ACTIVE - SLIGHTLY 
HIGHER THAN THE NATIONAL 

AVERAGE (57%) 3

38%
OF ADULTS (14+) PARTICIPATE IN

SPoRT oNCE A WEEK, HIGHER THAN 
BOTH THE REGIONAL (36%) AND 

NATIONAL (36%) AVERAGE. 4

63%
OF RESIDENTS

FEEL STRoNGLY THAT
THEY BELoNG To THEIR

LoCAL AREA.1

48%
OF RESIDENTS SAID THEY

WoULd VoLUNTEER MORE
IF INFORMATION ABOUT

VOLUNTEERING WAS AVAILABLE.1

For more information please see Wirral JSNA: http://info.wirral.nhs.uk/ Page 43



THE WIRRAL PLAN: A 2020 VISIoN

OUR PRIORITIES

12 Page 44



13

WIRRAL’S LEISURE STRATEGY

1. Promote and celebrate Wirral’s   
 parks, coast and countryside    
 for leisure activities

Wirral has a range of fantastic 
natural leisure assets, many of 
which can be enjoyed for free. Wirral 
has 25 miles of stunning coastline 
and over 1,500 hectares of parks and 
open spaces which provide endless 
leisure opportunities for walking, 
cycling and enjoying time with 
friends and family. 

The Wirral Way runs along the west Wirral 
coastline and provides 12 miles of 
uninterrupted pathway in a quiet and tranquil 
setting; similarly the Wirral Circular Trail is a 35 
mile signposted walking and cycling route that 
takes you on a tour of the borough’s glorious 
coastline and open spaces, providing  
residents and visitors with a great choice of 
natural leisure assets to enjoy.  

Our parks, beaches and open spaces have 
won national awards and are home to many 
kinds of plants and wildlife. Hilbre Island  
attracts many visitors throughout the year to 
enjoy the beautiful scenery and views across 
the River Dee, and to experience watching grey 
seals and a variety of coastal birds in their 
natural environment.

Wirral is also fortunate to be surrounded on 
three sides by water providing excellent 
opportunities for fishing, sailing and other 
watersports. We have two marine lakes - at 
West Kirby and New Brighton - both of which 
are popular for a range of leisure pursuits such 
as windsurfing, kayaking and boating. 

We also have assets of historic importance 
such as Birkenhead Park, the world’s first 
public park, designed by Joseph Paxton, 

opened in 1847 and the inspiration for the 
creation of Central Park in New York City. A 
variety of events and local activities are held in 
our parks and open spaces including festivals 
and concerts. We also have a range of 
community gardens and open spaces that are 
maintained by local community groups, such 
as the New Ferry Butterfly Park which is an 
urban nature reserve.

It is important that we build on the fantastic 
leisure offer we currently have in Wirral and 
our priority over the next five years is to 
further enhance these assets and to market, 
promote and celebrate leisure in Wirral and 
attract more visitors from outside the area. 

What do we already know?

•  Two thirds of residents use parks, beaches   
 and open spaces for walking and exercise,   
 one in five use them for cycling and one in   
 ten use parks for playing sport.5  

•  Relaxation is one of the main reasons given  
 for using parks and open spaces.5

•  The coast, countryside and quality food are  
 the most important considerations for   
 planning short breaks to the Wirral.2

What will we do over the next five years?

• We will maximise the potential of our parks,  
 beaches and open spaces through    
 developing our country parks as national   
 tourist attractions and create more    
 opportunities for camping and caravanning  
 facilities.

• We will increase the number and variety of   
 events held in Wirral including festivals and  
 local activities to all our residents,    
 regardless of age or income. 

Page 45



THE WIRRAL PLAN: A 2020 VISIoN

14

• We will promote our tourist attractions like   
 New Brighton, Hilbre Island and Birkenhead  
 Park and develop our watersport offer to   
 attract regional, national and international   
 visitors to Wirral.

How will we measure if we’re getting this 
right?

•  Increase the number of residents who   
 regularly use the boroughs parks and open  
 spaces (Source: Residents’ Survey).

•  Increase the value of Visitor spend in Wirral  
 to £450 million by 2020 (Source:    
 Scarborough Tourism Economy Activity   
 Monitor ‘STEAM’ Report).

•  Increase the number of visitors to Wirral to   
 9.1 million by 2020 (Source: STEAM Report).

•  Increase the number of events in Wirral’s   
 parks, beaches and open spaces (APSE   
 Parks Performance Review).

•  Increase the number of national quality   
 awards for Wirral’s parks, coastal sites and   
 open spaces (Source: Green Flag and Blue   
 Flag awards).
 

CASE STUdY

In 2014, National Citizen Service (NCS) 
worked in partnership with Wirral 
Council Coastal Rangers to reopen the 
old campsite facility at Thurstaston to 
provide accommodation for young 
people to camp in Wirral Country Park 
and experience nature and wildlife. The 
120 young people engaged in activities 
such as ‘Forest Schools’ led by the 
Rangers and recognised qualifications 
including first aid and food safety.

In summer 2015, 190 young people, 
attended the NCS programme. The 
young people now aim to gather funding 
to get a working kitchen/ washing area 
so growing numbers can be 
accommodated. A further 200 young 
people are expected to join the 
programme in summer 2016.

CASE STUdY

The Wirral Walking Festival is a series 
of exciting and varied walks in the parks, 
open countryside, coast and heritage 
sites in Wirral throughout May each year. 
This annual event is aimed at introducing 
people to parts of Wirral that they have 
never visited and will ‘showcase’ the 
Wirral Peninsula as one of the most 
diverse and interesting places in the 
country to live and visit. Many of the 
walks are accessible for those with 
limited mobility.

Page 46



15

WIRRAL’S LEISURE STRATEGY

“ The perfect walk for fresh air  
 and sea views.”
 Marine Lake, West Kirby, Visitor from Chester, September 2015

Page 47



2. Encourage people to take part in  
 sports, leisure, social and   
 physical activities

The health and wellbeing of our
residents is important to us all. In
Wirral, almost 58% of adults (16+) 
are classified as active which is 
slightly higher than the national 
(56%) and regional averages (53%),
but this is a figure we want to
increase due to the benefits that
taking part in leisure activities have
on a person’s health and wellbeing. 1 

   

These benefits include reducing the 
likelihood of obesity, increasing life 
expectancy and improving mental health 
through reducing depression and alleviating 
anxiety. We want to encourage more people 
to take responsibility for their own physical 
and mental health and taking part in more 
sports, leisure, social and physical activities 
is an important part of that ambition.

There are a range of community, private and 
public sector leisure offers currently 
available to residents, including sports 
centres and fitness suites, community gyms 
and local sports teams, in addition to local 
walking, running and cycling groups. We also 
have exercise facilities within many of our 
parks and an extensive range of local groups 
in Wirral who provide community-led 
activities, enabling residents to take part in 
an array of leisure activities including award-
winning football, athletics, cricket and rugby 
clubs. We will ensure that all local residents, 
including those who are disabled or 
disadvantaged, are able to access leisure 
opportunities.

An active community creates a good 
environment for local residents to support 
healthy behaviours and reduces health 
inequalities. Every young person in Wirral 
should be able to access and participate in 
sporting or leisure activities, which has been 
linked to improving educational attainment 
and reducing anti-social behaviour. Sport 
also helps create a sense of belonging and 
social inclusion through bringing people 
from all backgrounds together to enjoy a 
competitive activity, or just for fun. 

Based on what our residents have told us, 
we recognise that for some people, there 
are a number of obstacles which prevent 
them from enjoying leisure activities. For 
example, many residents feel socially 
isolated and would like to participate in 
some form of leisure, however they do not 
have the confidence, or are unsure of how 
to make the ‘first step’. We want to 
encourage our residents to support their 
family members, friends and neighbours to 
help them participate in leisure pursuits. 
This could include assisting them in their 
search for an appropriate leisure activity, or 
providing them with moral support by 
accompanying them to a fitness class, or 
social group.  

We will also work to ensure  the cost  of 
leisure activities in Wirral does not act as a 
barrier to our residents and want to 
promote leisure opportunities for all of our 
residents regardless of age, ability, or 
income.

Our priority is to work in partnership with 
local groups and organisations to encourage 
our residents to make beneficial changes to 
their lifestyles, such as walking or cycling to 
work or engaging in social activities to tackle 
isolation. We will also encourage individuals 
and families to make leisure a part of their 
daily routine and encourage participation in 
leisure and sport from an earlier age.

THE WIRRAL PLAN: A 2020 VISIoN

16 Page 48



16

What do we already know?

•  66% of residents are satisfied with local   
 sports provision in comparison to 62 % of   
 people in the North West and 62% of people  
 in England.7  

•  61% of residents claim feeling healthy is one   
 of the most important factors contributing to  
 their quality of life.1

What will we do over the next five years?

• We will develop an ‘Active Wirral’ campaign to  
 encourage people to participate in sports   
 and physical activity.

• We will work with partners to develop   
 creative ways to support people to access   
 leisure activities.

• We will work with local schools and colleges   
 to encourage participation in leisure and   
 sport from an earlier age.

• We will increase access to physical and   
 sporting activities for more of our residents.

• We will work with partners to further   
 develop our cycling and walking networks   
 and cycle hire hubs.

• We will promote the health, economic and   
 environmental benefits of walking and   
 cycling through marketing campaigns, local   
 businesses and educational institutions.  

• We will review the private and public leisure   
 provision in Wirral to make it affordable and   
 fit for the future needs of our residents. 
 
How will we measure if we’re getting this 
right?

• Increase the number of adults cycling to   
 work (Source: Travel surveys with local   
 businesses). 

• Increase the number of people who are   
 cycling in Wirral (Source: Automatic cycle   
 counters figures)

• Increase the number of adults (14+) who   
 participate in sport at least once a week   
 (Source: Active Lives Survey - Sports England).

• Increase the use of outdoor space for   
 exercise / health reasons (Source: Public   
 Health Outcomes Framework).

CASE STUdY

Birkenhead Parkrun is a 5km run, 
which takes place every Saturday at 
9:00am in Birkenhead Park. The Parkrun 
can be completed at any running pace 
and is suitable for both novice runners, 
as well as for more advanced runners. 
Anyone is welcome to register to Parkrun 
and it is free to join. Birkenhead Parkrun 
is organised entirely by volunteers, who 
welcome runners for a post-parkrun 
coffee at the Birkenhead Park Visitors 
Centre. 

CASE STUdY

October 2015 saw a host of CycloCross 
races take place on the playing fields 
behind the Oval Leisure Centre, 
Bebington. The day was organised by 
local cycling club, Port Sunlight Wheelers, 
as part of the North West CycloCross 
League. This was the first time a league 
race had taken place on Wirral, and if the 
success of the day is anything to go by, 
there will be more races coming our way 
in the future! Over 400 people of all ages 
competed on the day in a number of 
races organised on the 2km long course.

WIRRAL’S LEISURE STRATEGY

17Page 49



THE WIRRAL PLAN: A 2020 VISIoN

18 Page 50



3. Increase pride in Wirral’s    
 communities and encourage    
 more residents to volunteer 

In Wirral, we are fortunate to have 
a vibrant network of volunteers, 
active community groups and 
organisations who are passionate 
about participating in their local 
neighbourhoods and play a vital role 
in helping us  improve and promote 
our leisure offer. 

We have strong and well-established friends 
groups, who have a key role in promoting and 
maintaining our parks and assisting with a 
variety of conservation tasks. Many friends 
of parks groups in Wirral also help organise 
events, lead guided walks and raise funds to 
ensure the parks are maintained to the highest 
standard.

We want to continue to build on these 
networks and groups and inspire more of our 
residents to volunteer. To do this, we seek to 
further instil community pride and will provide  
residents with the opportunity to choose from 
a variety of volunteering options from parks 
and gardens, to volunteering in a range of 
different sporting and social clubs. 

Volunteering provides opportunities for 
personal development and offers a chance 
to gain experience and skills which could help 
access employment.

We want to encourage more residents to get 
involved in local events which bring 
communities together and to encourage our 
residents to participate in all forms of leisure 
and social activities. More locally-led leisure 
activities can help tackle loneliness and social 
isolation which particularly impacts our older 

residents. We believe access to more leisure 
opportunities provided locally will help us 
support some of our most vulnerable 
residents to become more involved in their 
communities.    

Our priority is to support more people to 
volunteer and to encourage local groups and 
organisations to continue to make a positive 
contribution in their local area. We want to 
support more locally-led leisure activities and 
provide support and motivation to enable 
more residents to access leisure activities 
across the borough. 

What do we already know?

•  48% of residents said they would volunteer  
 if more information about the things they   
 could do was available.1

•  17% of Wirral residents volunteer at least   
 one hour a week to support sport – slightly   
 higher than the regional (13%) and national   
 (13%) statistics.7
 
What will we do over the next five years?

• We will work with local groups and    
 communities to encourage more people to   
 volunteer in Wirral.

• We will explore opportunities to enable   
 local groups and communities to manage   
 and run local leisure assets and activities in  
 their neighbourhoods.

How will we measure if we’re getting
this right?

• Increase the number of residents who say   
 they volunteer and / or support community  
 groups (Source: Residents’ Survey).

• Increase the number of successful asset   
 transfers to local communities. 

WIRRAL’S LEISURE STRATEGY

19Page 51



  

     

“ Volunteering brings benefits to   
 both society at large and the    
 individual volunteer. It makes    
 important contributions,     
 economically as well as socially. 
 It contributes to a more cohesive  
 society by building trust and
 reciprocity among citizens” 
 United Nations

THE WIRRAL PLAN: A 2020 VISIoN

20 Page 52



CASE STUdY

Stuart Smith, Wirral Sports Forum’s 
Young Volunteer of the Year 2015, 
received the exciting news that due to 
his outstanding and ongoing 
commitment to sport, he has been 
asked to take on a Young Advisors role 
at the next Olympic Games in Rio de 
Janeiro, Brazil in 2016.

It could all have been so different. It was 
only a couple of years ago that Stuart 
had fallen in with the wrong crowd and 
was finding it difficult to stay out of 
trouble. The change started when he 
was referred to Wirral Positive Futures 
scheme whose aim is to use sport to 
improve behaviour, attitudes and 
outlook on life in order to improve 
lifestyles and ultimately achieve better 
futures. Stuart says “I feel better than 
ever, I am self-motivated to do things 
and I have a positive outlook on life”.

16

WIRRAL’S LEISURE STRATEGY

21

CASE STUdY

Heswall Hall is a shining example of 
how a vibrant, engaged and dynamic 
Wirral community can transform an 
asset. The Hall was transferred to 
Heswall Community Trust in September 
2011 and, while still owned by Wirral 
Council, the Trust wholly manages its 
operation, maintenance and finances.

The Hall is once again a prized 
community asset with pre-school play 
schemes, lunch clubs and tea dances 
among a huge variety of services and 
activities on offer every week.

Page 53



HOW WE WILL DELIVER THIS STRATEGY

THE WIRRAL PLAN: A 2020 VISIoN

22

The delivery of this leisure strategy
will be in partnership with local
residents and community groups, as
well as public, private and voluntary
sector organisations. The strategy 
will also support the key outcomes 
outlined in the national government
strategy ‘Sporting Future: A New 
Strategy for an Active Nation’.
We will deliver the ambitions 
outlined through the following
action plan and other key strategies
and plans which focus on culture,
tourism, parks and open spaces,
volunteering and health and
wellbeing.

The agreed actions will be delivered over the 
lifetime of this strategy with detailed project 
plans to be developed to ensure there is 
regular review and monitoring of the actions. 
There will also be further engagement and 
consultation with residents, partner 
organisations and other stakeholders as we 
develop more detailed action plans.

An annual report will be prepared which will 
outline progress of the actions and 
demonstrate the outcomes that have been 
achieved through the delivery of the strategy. 

Page 54



WIRRAL’S LEISURE STRATEGY

“ Without Birkenhead Park    
 there would be no Central   
 Park... without Central Park   
 there would be no New York”
 doug Blonsky, President and CEo of Central Park Conservancy

23Page 55



1.  Promote and celebrate Wirral’s parks, coast and countryside for leisure activities

Theme Lead:  Age UK Wirral

What do we need to do? By when Lead organisation

Implement promotion and develop effective marketing 
campaigns for Wirral’s parks, coast and countryside. March 2016 Wirral Council 

Marketing Team

Prepare a master plan for each of Wirral’s country 
parks to optimise their potential. 

September 
2016

Wirral Council Parks 
and Countryside Team

Create and publicise a calendar of local events and 
activities. April 2016 Wirral Council 

Marketing Team

Increase the number of events in Wirral’s parks. April 2017 Wirral Council Parks 
and Countryside Team

Develop commercial opportunities for people to enjoy 
parks and open spaces, through:
• Creating additional camping and caravanning sites 
in Wirral
• Develop a Footgolf course at Arrowe Country Park 
and the Warren.

April 2017

March 2016   

Wirral Council Parks 
and Countryside 

Team

Wirral Council

Improve signage to Wirral’s parks, countryside and 
open spaces to 20 sites. April 2018

Wirral Council Parks 
and Countryside 

Team 

Ensure the training offer for the leisure and tourism 
sectors supports the priorities for business growth 
and development.

March 2017 Wirral Metropolitan 
College

Maximise work related opportunities to engage students 
of all ages in the leisure and tourism sectors, progress 
them into apprenticeships, jobs and ensure 
opportunities for continuous professional development.

March 2017 Wirral Metropolitan 
College

Provide more opportunities for young people to 
benefit from being outdoors , for example, continue  
to run Forest Schools with Wirral pupils.

Ongoing
Wirral Council in 
partnership with 

local schools

Refurbish on-shore facilities at Marine Lake, 
West Kirby.

Work 
commences 
in April 2016. 

Target 
completion 

date April 2017

Wirral Council

Improve watersports offer at New Brighton through 
identifying future viable activities. June 2016 Wirral Council

24

ACTION PLANS

THE WIRRAL PLAN: A 2020 VISIoN

1.  Promote and celebrate Wirral’s parks, coast and countryside for leisure activities

Page 56



2. Encourage people to take part in sports, leisure, social and physical activities

What do we need to do? By when Lead organisation

Explore further opportunities for using technology 
and social media campaigns to encourage 
participation in sport and physical activity.

June 2016 Wirral Council 
Marketing Team

Implement Liquid Logic Marketplace to capture
local activities.

April 2016 Wirral Council

Develop, promote and support good referral 
pathways between GPs and the network of sports, 
leisure, social and physical activities available in Wirral, 
particularly those activities provided by the extensive 
voluntary sector.

June 2016 Wirral Health 
Partners

Host an annual marketplace event to showcase 
leisure opportunities in Wirral. July 2016 Wirral Partnership

Implement a ‘buddy scheme’ to support people to 
access leisure activities and explore opportunities to 
develop a coaching programme. 

September 
2016 Wirral Council

Complete review of Wirral’s leisure and golf facilities to 
ensure they are sustainable and fit for the future. June 2016 Wirral Council

Develop and implement Green Routes to improve 
access to services and opportunities. Ongoing Merseytravel /  

Wirral Council

Ensure that new developments include walking and 
cycling routes link to existing communities and 
key destinations. 

Ongoing Merseytravel /  
Wirral Council

Explore funding opportunities for a prioritised 
programme of infrastructure projects to encourage 
the use of active modes e.g. Sustainable Transport 
Enhancements Package (STEP programme).

April 2017 Merseytravel /  
Wirral Council

Encourage more people to cycle through the following 
actions:
• Cycle hire scheme                                                             
• Increased number of secure cycle parking spaces      
• Improved signage at stations to key attractions          
• Support Bikeability training in schools by 2020           
• Work in partnership to support contribution and      
delivery of new community cycle hubs across Wirral. 

April 2017 Merseytravel /  
Wirral Council

Deliver the national curriculum standard for school 
swimming sessions. Ongoing

Wirral Council in 
partnership with 

local schools

21

WIRRAL’S LEISURE STRATEGY

25Page 57



THE WIRRAL PLAN: A 2020 VISIoN

3.  Increase pride in Wirral’s communities and encourage more residents to volunteer

What do we need to do? By when Lead organisation

Develop a partnership approach to volunteering 
across the public, private, community and voluntary 
sector in Wirral. 
• Research best practice in other areas 
• Develop a Wirral Partnership strategy for    
volunteering 
• Create more local volunteering opportunities to   
support leisure and social activities in Wirral
• Agree a public sector workforce volunteering 
programme

March 2017 Wirral Partnership

Actively work with local groups to enable them to run 
and manage leisure activities and facilities in Wirral 
and access funding opportunities.

March 2017 Wirral Partnership

Encourage private sector businesses to sign-up to 
workforce volunteering programmes. June 2016 Wirral Partnership

Increase the number of places on National Citizens 
Service programme available to Wirral’s young people 
aged 16 to 17.

In line with 
national 

programme
Wirral Council

26

What do we need to do? By when Lead organisation

Deliver  a range of successful sporting initiatives 
across the borough including:                                          
• Streetgames programmes for young people               
• Mobile sports outreach units                                         
• ‘Positive Futures’ programme                                        
• ‘Sportivate’ programme to 14-25 year olds.                 
• ‘Satellite Clubs’ programme for 14-25 year olds.

Ongoing Wirral Council

Open Wirral’s first Youth Zone ‘The Hive’ for the 
borough’s young people aged 8-19 and up to 25 for 
those with disabilities.

Complete 
summer 2016. 

Open 
December 

2016 

Onside

Develop disability sport programmes in line with the 
new government strategy of ‘Sporting Future – a New 
Strategy for an Active Nation’

Ongoing Wirral Council

Page 58



27

WIRRAL’S LEISURE STRATEGY

CONCLUSION

In developing this strategy we have 
listened to what our residents and 
visitors have told us to identify the 
priorities for the leisure strategy and 
what we will focus on for the next 
five years.  

We will work collaboratively with our partners 
and stakeholders, to deliver our ambition for 
more people to enjoy the wide range of leisure, 
social, physical and sporting opportunities 
available across Wirral; and to encourage and 
provide opportunities for more people to 
volunteer in Wirral. 

Page 59



28

1 Wirral Council (2015): Wirral Residents Survey 2015; https://www.wirral.gov.uk/about-council/wirral-plan-
2020-vision/wirral-resident-survey-2015  accessed 15/2/2016

2 Wirral Council (2011): Wirral Visitor Research Study 2011; taken from Wirral Parks and Open Spaces 
Strategy 2014 – 2024, https://www.wirral.gov.uk/sites/default/files/all/Leisure%20parks%20and%20
events/parks%20and%20open%20spaces/Wirral%20Parks%20and%20Open%20Spaces%20
Strategy%202014-2024.pdf accessed 15/2/2016

3 Public Health England (2015): Public Health Outcomes Framework, 2.13i - Percentage of physically active 
and inactive adults - active adults 2014- http://www.phoutcomes.info/public-health-outcomes-
framework#page/3/gid/1000042/pat/6/par/E12000002/ati/101/are/E08000015/iid/90275/age/164/sex/4    
accessed 15/2/2016

4 Sport England (2015a): Active People Interactive- All Sports; http://activepeople.sportengland.org/
Result#Id=90292&OutputType=1 accessed 15/2/2016

5 Wirral Council (2012): Parks Survey 2012; www.wirral.gov.uk

6 Sport England (2015b): Active People Interactive- All physical activities; http://activepeople.sportengland.
org/Result#Id=90290&OutputType=1 

7 Sport England (2015c): Local Sport Profile: Wirral - KPI6 - Very/fairly satisfied with local sports provision; 
http://localsportprofile.sportengland.org/ProfileReport.aspx?g=00CB&t=P&s=P01,P02,P03,P04,P05,P06,
P07,P19,P20,P28,P21,P22,P23,P24,P25,P27 accessed 15/2/2016

For more information please see Wirral JSNA: http://info.wirral.nhs.uk/ 

For more information on all aspects of travel and transport, please see Liverpool City Region ‘A Transport 
Plan for Growth’ http://www.merseytravel.gov.uk/about-us/local-transport-delivery.

                                      AGEING WELL IN WIRRAL

REFERENCES

Page 60



WIRRAL’S LEISURE STRATEGY

Page 61



THE WIRRAL PARTNERSHIP

 

search: Wirral 2020

@wirral2020

Page 62



WIRRAL’S CULTURE STRATEGY

1

WIRRAL’S CULTURE 
STRATEGY

THE WIRRAL PARTNERSHIP

Page 63

Agenda Item 7



2

THE WIRRAL PLAN: A 2020 VISION

CONTENTS

FoREWoRd 4

INTRoducTIoN 6

WHAT WE KNoW ABouT ARTS ANd cuLTuRE IN WIRRAL 10

ouR PRIoRITIES 

1.  Develop creative partnerships and a cultural events programme to promote arts,  
culture and heritage in Wirral 15

2.  Increase resident and visitor participation in Wirral’s arts, culture and heritage  
offer to promote its educational, social and wellbeing benefits 17

3.  Promote Wirral on a global stage as part of the Liverpool City Region to attract  
world class arts, culture and heritage events and exhibitions 19

4. Maximise the contribution of the arts, culture and heritage to the local economy 21

HoW WE WILL dELIvER THIS STRATEgy 24

AcTIoN PLANS    25

coNcLuSIoN 28

REFERENcES 29

Page 64



WIRRAL’S CULTURE STRATEGY

33

WIRRAL’S CULTURE STRATEGY

3Page 65



4

THE WIRRAL PLAN: A 2020 VISION

FOREWORD

councillor chris Meaden, cabinet Member 
Leisure and Culture

Events, arts, culture and heritage are intrinsic 
parts of what makes Wirral such a fantastic 
place to live and visit. World-famous museums 
and galleries, theatres, thriving arts and music 
festivals, and energetic and creative residents 
combine to form a borough with an incredible 
heritage and a bright future. 

As the Cabinet Member for Leisure and 
Culture I am proud to present Wirral’s Culture 
Strategy: developed in partnership, combining 
the views and ambitions of everyone with an 
interest in culture in Wirral, this strategy is the 
overarching vision for how everyone in this 
borough can work together to build on the 
cultural assets we have and allow every 
resident to enjoy them.

On any given day, a resident or visitor to Wirral 
can enjoy a show at the Floral Pavilion; see 
fascinating works of art at the Williamson Art 
Gallery, the Priory or the Lady Lever Art 
Gallery, stroll through historic locations like 
Hamilton Square or Port Sunlight and take 
part in an event in iconic Birkenhead Park, the 
inspiration for Central Park in New York City. 

We should be proud of our borough, and 
through this strategy we will do all we can to 
enable all of our residents to enjoy this unique 
place. During a time when funding continues 
to reduce and we need to target public money 
carefully; we have to do more together, find 
new ways of promoting arts and culture, of 
getting residents more involved, and of 
promoting Wirral on the world-stage as a 
cultural attraction.

Culture is important to us all. Events and 
attractions bring thousands of visitors to  
Wirral every year; they build up our economy, 
create jobs and it helps to show the country 
and the world that Wirral is the vibrant and 
dynamic place we all know it to be.

Creativity is key; we need to do things 
differently, to find new ways to unlock the 
potential in our communities, to make sure 
public services and money are used to achieve 
the priorities described in this document  
and use imagination, new ideas and a spirit  
of partnership to turn Wirral into a cultural 
powerhouse. 

I am proud of this strategy, particularly by  
the spirit of partnership it creates. Visitors to 
Wirral are universally delighted and inspired  
by the culture they enjoy. This strategy will 
build on that; making sure that Wirral 
residents and visitors alike are able to benefit 
from the stunning and unique cultural 
opportunities we can offer.  

4

councillor chris Meaden

Page 66



WIRRAL’S CULTURE STRATEGY

55

WIRRAL’S CULTURE STRATEGY

Page 67



6

THE WIRRAL PLAN: A 2020 VISION

INTRODUCTION

The Wirral Plan sets out a commitment to work 
together over the next five years and beyond to 
achieve the 20 Pledges.

Our Wirral Plan pledge states: 

Leisure and Cultural Opportunities for All:  
We will encourage more people to enjoy the 
wide range of leisure, culture and sporting 
opportunities on offer across Wirral. We will listen 
to residents’ ideas and requests, and by 2020, will 
have increased access to events and activities to 
all our residents, regardless of age or income. 

The culture strategy will contribute to all 20  
Wirral Plan pledges and will specifically link across 
to our strategies for leisure, tourism and growth. 
This will ensure they complement each other and 
provide the ambition and aims to achieve and 
deliver our agreed outcomes.

6 Page 68



WIRRAL’S CULTURE STRATEGY

7

What is culture? 

‘Art is about the discovery of the 
unknown and the unimagined…’  
Arts council England 2013. 

“Culture is the way of life, especially 
the general customs and beliefs,  
of a particular group of people at  
a particular time.”                      
cambridge English dictionary.

Wirral’s Arts, culture and Heritage offer 

Wirral is blessed with stunning natural splendour 
and a rich heritage. There are a range of 
beautiful parks, countryside and open spaces 
together with a stunning coastline which 
combine to create a uniquely charming part  
of the world. The UNESCO World Heritage Site 
may be located on the Liverpool Waterfront,  
but the only way to truly enjoy it is from Wirral, 
along with our hundreds of cultural attractions, 
exhibitions and events. 

We are proud of our culture, our history and  
our present; including the Floral Pavilion, the 
Williamson Art Gallery, the Priory, and Lady  
Lever Art Gallery.  Our heritage assets are  
world class and attract visitors from across  
the globe to Port Sunlight, the Priory Museum 
and Birkenhead Park amongst other important 
historic and conservation sites. In addition, 
Wirral has an enviable musical heritage and a 
thriving, creative new music culture.

Wirral is home to many distinct towns and 
picturesque villages with thriving communities 
who come together to deliver events such as 
Wirral Festival of Firsts, Heswall Arts Festival, 
Youth arts events in New Brighton, Transport 
Exhibitions, and Heritage Open days; all 
organised and run by local groups and 
communities.  

Why is culture important in Wirral?

We want Wirral to be an area where residents 
both young and old continue to enjoy arts, 
culture and heritage activities and events.  
We also want to be a world-class tourist 
destination, continuing to welcome visitors  
from around the globe; a place where culture, 
enterprise and opportunity thrives and a place 
where people want to live, work, play, study  
and do business.

Enjoying culture can improve a person’s health 
and wellbeing, it develops strong and cohesive 
communities and it creates a fantastic place  
to live and visit. Culture brings major economic 
opportunities to an area through employment, 
investment, skills and the development of  
new businesses, particularly in the creative 
industry sector.  

Wirral is renowned for nurturing young and  
new talent; many local people regularly achieve 
regional, national and global success. We want  
to continue to nurture this talent in our young 
people through education and training so that 
we can continue to create the stars of the future 
in arts and culture. We also want to support local 
businesses in the cultural industry to thrive.   

Wirral’s place in the Liverpool city Region 
and wider area

Securing a strong and diverse quality arts and 
cultural offer in Wirral is important, but it is also 
vital that we look beyond our own boundaries 
and capitalise on the cultural opportunities 
throughout the Liverpool City Region.  

There is already a strong history of working 
together with our City Region partners to deliver 
fantastic events, which we want to build on 
further.  The Liverpool City Region devolution 
process and new approaches from other 
organisations mean that partners and key 
organisations in arts, cultural and creative 
industries must work together to achieve the 
exciting and unique opportunities the devolution 
deal presents.Page 69



8

National Government have indicated they are 
committed to working with the City Region  
to support a place-based strategy and our 
plans to establish a Local Cultural Partnership.  
In Wirral we want to work with all partners  
in order to maximise the range and scope  
of high-quality cultural opportunities that 
residents and tourists can enjoy and take  
part in at a community level, across Wirral  
and the wider Liverpool City Region.

In the past few years, we have seen globally-
significant events and hundreds  
of thousands of visitors to the City Region.  
The Three Queens in May 2015 saw Cunard 
returning to its spiritual home, following the 
hugely successful Giants parade in Liverpool. 
The Tall Ships Festival on the River Mersey and 
the return of the Open Golf Championship to 
Hoylake further cemented Wirral and the 
Liverpool City Region’s position as a global 
cultural hub. 

There are also significant opportunities to 
further develop our cultural links with Chester 
and North Wales and we will continue to 
explore ways to attract visitors to Wirral to 
participate in arts, culture and heritage events 
and activities.

The purpose of the strategy

Through this Strategy we have defined culture 
as being about arts, about creativity, about 
taking part and enjoyment. It is about using 
culture to drive happiness for residents, 
improving their quality of life and growing the 
local economy. 

We will work, with all stakeholders, on a clear 
set of priorities to enhance Wirral’s cultural 
offer and enable culture, arts and heritage to 
enrich the lives of residents and visitors and 
inspire people to participate.  

The ambition of this strategy is to ensure that 
all Wirral residents and visitors can access 
great cultural opportunities; it aims to support 
and promote new and existing talented Wirral 
artists, enable our local creative businesses 
and cultural organisations to thrive and to 
build on some of the fantastic assets that 
currently exist within Wirral. 

THE WIRRAL PLAN: A 2020 VISION

Page 70



WIRRAL’S CULTURE STRATEGY

9

our culture priorities for Wirral over the 
next 5 years

This strategy has been developed through 
discussion and consultation with a range of 
partners including local, regional and national 
arts, culture and heritage organisations.   
The strategy is also based on an 
understanding of what our local residents and 
visitors have told us is important to them 
through the Wirral Resident Survey and Wirral 
Visitor Research study. We are committed to 
continuing to engage with a wide range of 
stakeholders to enhance Wirral’s cultural offer 
and to secure events and activities in Wirral for 
our residents and visitors to enjoy.   

There is a growing body of evidence which 
demonstrates that a good cultural offer brings 
economic, educational, social, wellbeing and 
health benefits to a region and its people. 

The priorities underpinning this cultural 
strategy and associated plans are therefore as 
follows: 

• Develop creative partnerships and a   
 cultural events programme to promote   
 arts, culture and heritage in Wirral.  

• Increase resident and visitor participation   
 in Wirral’s arts, culture and heritage offer   
 to promote its educational, social and   
 wellbeing benefits. 

• Promote Wirral on a global stage as part  
of the Liverpool City Region to attract  
world class arts, culture and heritage 
events and exhibitions. 

• Maximise the contribution of the arts, 
culture and heritage to the local economy. 

To deliver the priorities outlined above we  
will work with a broad range of partners and 
professional in the public, private, voluntary 
and community sectors, including National 
Museums Liverpool and Culture Liverpool,  
as well as Arts Council England and other 
regional and national funding bodies to  
achieve our ambitions.  

Page 71



10

THE WIRRAL PLAN: A 2020 VISION

WhAT WE kNOW 
AbOUT ARTS AND 
CULTURE IN WIRRAL…

10

Th
e 

Bl
ac

k 
Pe

ar
l N

ew
 B

ri
gh

to
n:

 h
tt

ps
://

w
w

w
.fa

ce
bo

ok
.c

om
/#

!/T
he

Bl
ac

kP
ea

rl
N

ew
Br

ig
ht

on
/ -

 a
cc

es
se

d 
3/

4/
20

16

Page 72



WIRRAL’S CULTURE STRATEGY

11

FESTIvALS
  1    Heswall Arts Festival
  2 Wirral Festival of Firsts
  3 Festival of Transport
  4 Hillbark Players - Open-air Shakespeare

5     Love New Brighton Parade
6 International Guitar Festival
7 Wirral Beer Festival
8 Astral Coast Festival 11

Greasby

Pensby

Thingwall

Barnston
Storeton

Parkgate

Oxton

Brimstage Hall
& Craft Courtyard

texttext

Hooton

Eastham
Rake

Bromborough

Bromborough
Rake

Spital

Port Sunlight

Bebington

Rock
Ferry

Green Lane

Birkenhead
Central

Conway
Park

Birkenhead
Park

Birkenhead
North

Wallasey
Village

Wallasey
Grove

BidstonLeasoweMoreton

Meols

Manor Road

Hoylake

West Kirby

Upton

Heswall

Neston

Hamilton
Square

U-boat Story

Woodside
Ferry Terminal

Seacombe
Ferry

Terminal

See inset map

Birkenhead Priory

WIRRAL

CHESHIRE WEST
& CHESTER

W
irral Country Park 

- W
irral W

ay

IRISH SEA / LIVERPOOL BAY

IRISH SEA

Bidston
Moss

Arrowe
Country

Park

Arrowe
Country

Park

Heswall
Dales

Pier Head
Ferry

Terminal

Wirral
Archive Service

Leasowe
Lighthouse

Birkenhead Park

Wirral
Transport
Museum

The
Wilfred

Owen Story

O� the
Ground Theatre

Marine Point
& Attractions

Black Pearl

1

2

3

7

4

5
8

6The Light Cinema

WIRRAL’S CULTURE STRATEGY

WIRRAL PENINSULA

Th
e 

Bl
ac

k 
Pe

ar
l N

ew
 B

ri
gh

to
n:

 h
tt

ps
://

w
w

w
.fa

ce
bo

ok
.c

om
/#

!/T
he

Bl
ac

kP
ea

rl
N

ew
Br

ig
ht

on
/ -

 a
cc

es
se

d 
3/

4/
20

16

Page 73



12

THE WIRRAL PLAN: A 2020 VISION

Birkenhead Park Festival of Transport

The festival of Transport is held in Birkenhead 
Park and is now in its 9th year. The festival is 
run by volunteers and features steam engines, 
vintage buses and classic cars as well as a 
vintage fair, food and crafts, and live musicians.

Wirral Festival of Firsts 

Wirral Festival of Firsts was first established in 
2011 in Hoylake.  The community based arts 
festival brings together hundreds of artists, 
performers and musicians to celebrate the 
power and diversity of art and music in Wirral.  

The Floral Pavilion Ambassadors 

The Floral Pavilion Ambassador scheme 
started in 2013 and now has over 150 
volunteers aged 16 to 85. The scheme provides 
an opportunity for members of the community 
to feel integrated within the venue and to assist 
with the venues operations. 

Page 74



WIRRAL’S CULTURE STRATEGY

13

     

“ We will work, with all 
stakeholders, on a clear set of 
priorities to enhance Wirral’s 
cultural offer and enable culture, 
arts and heritage to enrich the lives 
of residents and visitors and inspire 
people to participate. “

13

WIRRAL’S CULTURE STRATEGY

Page 75



14

THE WIRRAL PLAN: A 2020 VISIONTHE WIRRAL PLAN: A 2020 VISION

OUR PRIORITIES

14 Page 76



WIRRAL’S CULTURE STRATEGY

15

1.   develop creative partnerships  
and a cultural events programme       
to promote arts, culture and heritage 
in Wirral 

Wirral is well known for its vibrant 
range of local organisations, groups  
and individual artists who have put the 
area on the map for its creativity and 
inspiring events and activities.  

Wirral is and always has been a place that has 
nurtured world class talent and creativity, 
including an endless and diverse list of writers, 
poets, actors, dancers, musicians and 
performers: Wilfred Owen, Glenda Jackson, 
Alan Clarke, Daniel Craig, Andrea Buckley, John 
Peel, The Coral, Orchestral Manoeuvres in the 
Dark and Paul O’Grady to name but a few.   
We want to continue to support the talented 
individual artists and groups in Wirral and 
enable them to reach their full potential in this 
dynamic and competitive sector.

We will work in partnership to promote our 
local arts and cultural organisations and 
support them to grow and expand. We will 
facilitate creative networks and hubs to enable 
the sector to share best practice, raise their 
profile and explore further opportunities to 
build on the fantastic work that is already 
happening in Wirral. We want to empower   
and enable communities to lead events locally.   

We will work closely with key partners and 
organisations to build action based 
partnerships which will be key to helping arts 
and cultural provision to grow and thrive.  
Central to this will be our support to both the 
grass roots creative and professional cultural 
sectors which will be a crucial part of this work.

We will use our rivers, coast, parks and open 
countryside to maximise opportunities for art 
in the landscape and cultural events.

What will we do over the next five years?

• We will establish a Wirral Culture 
Partnership to generate ideas and 
opportunities.

• We will map existing arts, culture and 
heritage activity in Wirral and develop  
a marketing and communications 
programme in partnership with the arts 
and culture sector to promote activities 
and events.

• We will develop a specific plan in relation  
to Wirral’s music offer.

• We will explore opportunities to run  
advice surgeries for small arts and cultural 
organisations in Wirral.

 
How will we measure if we’re getting
this right?

• Annual survey of the effectiveness of the   
 Wirral Culture Partnership.

• Increase funding from funding organisations  
 including Arts Council England, Heritage   
 Lottery Fund and other sources. 

Page 77



16

cASE STudIES

 
Priory Education Programme

Placed Education is developing a unique 
architecture and design workshop for pupils 
from year 3-13 to explore the architecture  
and heritage of the Priory – the oldest building 
in Merseyside. In a pilot workshop run for  
year 5 pupils at the Priory Primary School, 
professional architects worked with staff  
and pupils to develop skills and techniques 
which complement the school curriculum 
through design technology, art, geography   
and history.

The Black Pearl

The Black Pearl, New Brighton and her 
sister ship The grace darling, Hoylake, were 
created in 2013 by local artists Frank Lund  
and Major Mace. The ships, made mostly  
from driftwood collected from Wirral’s  
beaches, attract hundreds of children and 
adults. The artists encourage community 
participation in the projects and there is  
now a growing band of driftwood dreamers 
who give their time and skills to maintaining  
the boats. Frank Lund commented “Maybe 
 it is “art” and maybe it isn’t. Whatever it is,  
it is there to be experienced, to be lived with,  
to be jumped on, interacted with, altered, 
copied, rebuilt and, most of all, enjoyed!”. 

Heritage open days

Wirral’s Heritage open days are organised 
by volunteers from Wirral Heritage History and 
Heritage Association, with support from the 
Council and over 70 local groups. In 2015, 73 
local history and heritage organisations came 
together to organise 148 events over 9 days, 
attracting more than 5,000 residents and 
visitors. The range of activities included special 
openings of historic buildings and churches, 
walks, talks and family events.

 

THE WIRRAL PLAN: A 2020 VISION

Page 78



WIRRAL’S CULTURE STRATEGY

17

2.  Increase resident and visitor 
participation in Wirral’s arts,  
culture and heritage offer to  
promote its educational, social  
and wellbeing benefits 

Being involved in arts, creativity and 
culture can help to transform people’s 
lives. We will do more to engage with 
our local residents and communities 
and promote the educational, social  
and wellbeing benefits that culture  
can offer.

 
We will celebrate diverse cultural interests and 
secure a wide range of cultural opportunities 
for all our residents, visitors and families to 
enjoy. We will ensure that arts and culture is 
inclusive for all groups in Wirral; regardless of 
age, income or background. We want to   
inspire communities to deliver projects, 
programmes, events and activities that can 
further strengthen community cohesion and 
civic pride.

In Wirral there are many community led arts 
and cultural events and activities such as the 
Festival of Firsts in Hoylake, Heswall Arts 
Festival, Love New Brighton and many 
more.  There is also an abundance of local 
youth arts and cultural events and activities, 
history groups and Heritage Open days, 
organised and run by local groups and 
communities that we must continue to 
promote and support. Participation in arts   
and creative activity can help communities      
to have pride and confidence in the places 
where they live and celebrate what goes on     
in local neighbourhoods. Our public spaces 
and community assets, such as parks, schools, 
community centres, libraries, theatres, 
museums and galleries provide excellent 

venues for people to enjoy and access arts and 
cultural events and activities, and we need to 
explore how we can maximise these 
opportunities further.

Participation in arts and culture can have a 
positive impact on a person’s health and 
wellbeing. We will explore ways to enable 
people to fully realise these health benefits as 
an effective way of tackling health related 
conditions, such as mental health and other 
issues such as loneliness and social isolation.

We want to explore opportunities to use digital 
and social media to encourage people to 
participate in arts and culture, through actively 
marketing and promoting the range of cultural 
opportunities in Wirral.        

We will work collectively to identify where there 
are real gaps in provision to encourage more 
engagement and involvement.  We will also 
work with families, children and young people 
from an early age and our local schools to 
encourage participation to enjoy a wide range 
of arts and cultural activities.

What do we already know?

• 60% likelihood of reporting good health 
having attended a cultural place or event  
in the previous 12 months compared to 
those who had not.1

• 63% of residents feel strongly that they 
belong to their local area (Resident Survey 
2015).2

• Over 5,000 people attended Heritage  
Open Days in Wirral in 2015 (Wirral History 
& Heritage Association).3

• 30,000 youngsters attended the Floral 
Pavilions Educational Programme of  
Events in 2015.4

Page 79



18

cASE STudIES

 
‘Living Memories’ reminiscence project

The ‘Living Memories’ project, led by North 
West Lodestar, worked with older members    
of the local community to reminisce and  
record their experiences and memories 
through discussion, poetry, art, sharing 
photographs, filming and crafts.  Participants 
created individual ‘Memory Boxes’ containing 
photographs, small ornaments and personal 
stories. 

The project found that those who had been 
involved felt they had improved their general 
wellbeing and lessened their feelings of social 
isolation. 

Floral Pavilion choir 

The choral Pavilion choir started in 2011 
with 12 members; the group has since 
increased to over 120 members. The choir 
aims to enable everyone to access music and 
believes that singing can not only lift spirits, 
but open up new doors in all aspects of life. 
The choir have performed across the region, 
including Vale Park, New Brighton and at the 
annual River Festival at Liverpool Albert Dock. 
The choir also performs for free at the Floral 
Pavilion at the end of every term.

 
Love New Brighton Parade

The first Love New Brighton Parade was 
held in July 2015 organised by New Brighton 
Community Centre and Brightside working 
with over 200 local residents, schools, 
businesses and artists.  The parade attracted 
over 2,000 local residents and visitors who 
participated in the vibrant and colourful event 
which celebrated the uniqueness of our 
regenerated coastal town.  Instrumental to the 
management of the event was the involvement 
of the Wallasey young creatives 
Programme which provides local young 
people with creative and event management 
skills to deliver an outdoor production as well 
as developing their leadership, confidence, 
resilience and communication skills.  

What will we do over the next five years?

• We will encourage our residents and 
visitors to participate in a wide variety of 
arts and cultural events and activities held 
in Wirral’s communities.  

• We will work with families, youth 
organisations and local schools to 
encourage participation from a young age 
in arts, culture and heritage activities.

How will we measure if we’re getting  
this right?

• Increase the number of arts and culture 
events and activities in Wirral. 

• Increase the number of residents and 
visitors participating in arts and culture.

THE WIRRAL PLAN: A 2020 VISION

Page 80



WIRRAL’S CULTURE STRATEGY

19

3.  Promote Wirral on a global stage as 
part of the Liverpool city Region to 
attract world class arts, culture and 
heritage events and exhibitions 

It is important for Wirral to have a 
unique and compelling cultural identity 
that complements and supports the 
wider Liverpool city Region, in order 
that it can take full advantage of the 
fantastic range of arts, culture and 
heritage events across a broad area.

 
In the last few years there has been global 
attention on the region through major events 
such as the The Giants, Three Queens and the 
Tall Ships. These were prestigious cultural 
events with a global-profile, and attracted 
millions of local people and visitors. Visitors 
have come from across the world with many 
choosing to stay for several days and making a 
significant contribution to the local economy.  

Our aim is to work in partnership to ensure  
that Wirral continues to embrace these 
opportunities. Wirral is fantastically positioned 
on the banks of the River Mersey and stunning 
views across to Liverpool to take full advantage 
of promoting itself as a destination of choice 
for visitors to the region.  We have the potential 
in Wirral to attract visitors and to encourage 
them to stay and explore what we have on 
offer as well as the fantastic arts, culture and 
heritage offer available on our doorstep in 
Liverpool and Chester. 

We know that there are huge tourism 
opportunities that we can build on in Wirral.  
There are many excellent beaches and parks 
that can host more arts and culture events 
and provide unique opportunities to develop 
new cultural attractions and experiences like 
sculpture parks, festivals and theatre, music 
and dance events.     

We will provide a place for new and emerging 
talent in the arts, culture and music sectors, 
and develop global links through initiatives like 
Music Cities and live waterfront events.

Bringing world class events and exhibitions  
to the region and to Wirral will be of huge  
value to our residents and businesses.  
We need to do more to ensure we are able  
to take full advantage of these opportunities 
and attract national and regional funding.  

We are committed to working with our 
Liverpool City Region partners as part of the 
agreed devolution deal to develop plans to 
place culture and creativity at the heart of its 
strategy to accelerate economic growth, 
improve skills and further develop its 
distinctive visitor offer. 

 
What do we already know?

• 70,000 visitors watched the Three Queens 
event as part of the Mersey River Festival. 5

• 1 million visitors came to the region to 
enjoy the Memories of August 1914 event 
with around 300,000 from outside the 
Liverpool City Region.  The event boosted 
the local economy by £46 million. 6

• £735.8 million additional income was 
generated across the city of Liverpool in 
2008 when it was European Capital of 
Culture.7

• Music tourism numbers in the UK 
increased by 34% between 2011 and 2014, 
with 9.5 million people travelling to music 
events in 2014.8

• 68% of UK businesses believed that the 
European Capital of Culture had a positive 
impact on Liverpool’s image.7

Page 81



20

cASE STudIES

 
International guitar Festival of            
great Britain

The Festival was established in 1988 and 
continues to attract significant visitors to  
Wirral to experience a world class event.   
The annual festival provides a month of  
great music that shows the versatility and  
range of the guitar throughout the history  
of every genre of music including, classical 
music, jazz, folk, blues, rock’n’roll and rock. 

Three Queens – Mersey River Festival  

Cunard’s Three Queens – the Queen  
Elizabeth, Queen Victoria, and Queen  
Mary 2 took centre stage at the Mersey  
River Festival in May 2015 to celebrate the 
175th anniversary of the cruise line.   
Thousands of residents and visitors on  
both sides of the River Mersey lined the 
coastline to welcome the iconic ships; those 
who viewed the celebration from the Wirral 
shores had the advantage of experiencing 
stunning views across to the world famous 
Liverpool skyline.  The event received global 
media attention and was made even more 
memorable by the Red Arrows flypast to 
honour this special occasion. 

 
Port Sunlight

The historic village of Port Sunlight is a major 
tourist destination attracting 300,000+ visitors 
each year, both local and international. Port 
Sunlight is a Designated Conservation Area 
under the responsibility of Port Sunlight Village 
Trust. Nearly every building is Grade II Listed, 
and two sections of landscape are in Historic 
England’s ‘Register of Historic Parks and 
Gardens of special historic interest’. The Trust 
employs 50 members of staff, 16 tour guides 
and 60 volunteers. 

What will we do over the next five years?

• We will support the establishment of a 
Cultural Partnership as part of the 
Liverpool City Region devolution 
agreement.

• We will work in partnership with Culture 
Liverpool and our Liverpool City Region 
partners to maximise the opportunities to 
attract visitors to Wirral to enjoy arts, 
culture and heritage events.

• We will work with a range of funding 
organisations to enable further investment 
and funding opportunities.  

How will we measure if we’re getting
this right?

• Increase the value of Visitor spend in Wirral   
 to £450 million by 2020.
 (Scarborough Tourism Economy Activity   
 Monitor ‘STEAM’ Report) 

• Increase the number of visitors to Wirral to   
 over 9 million by 2020.
 (STEAM Report) 

THE WIRRAL PLAN: A 2020 VISION

Page 82



WIRRAL’S CULTURE STRATEGY

21

4.  Maximise the contribution of  
the arts, culture and heritage  
to the local economy 

Arts, culture and heritage can boost 
local economies through attracting 
visitors, developing local talent,  
creating jobs and developing skills, 
attracting and retaining businesses,  
and revitalising places.   

We want to work with our partners including 
Arts Council England, Creative and Cultural 
Skills, Wirral Chamber of Commerce and Wirral 
Metropolitan College to support the Wirral 
Partnership to maximise the contributions of 
the arts and cultural sector to the local 
economy.  We need to explore new ways of 
integrating the sector into the bigger picture  
for economic growth and change for Wirral.

Skills development within the sector is vital and 
we must work with local schools, colleges and 
specialist training providers to achieve 
progression from training into employment 
within the arts and cultural sector.  

Wirral has a vibrant creative sector of arts 
businesses including digital companies, 
independent producers, film, TV and radio 
companies and many more.  We want to 
explore ways to grow this sector further and 
attract new businesses and individuals to set 
up in Wirral. We will identify new and emerging 
talent within the music and cultural sectors 
and develop this for the benefit of Wirral’s 
economy. 

The digital production sector is a growing  
one with tremendous potential in terms  
of economic growth and employment 
opportunities. We want to support creative 
working in this sector and encourage our  
young people to participate in the 
opportunities that digital bring. 

We also want to ensure that we fully explore 
commercial opportunities and further develop 
our cultural assets including the Floral Pavilion, 
Williamson Art Gallery, Birkenhead Priory, Lady 
Lever Art Gallery, and other assets including 
Port Sunlight, Birkenhead Park, Country Parks 
and beaches to maximise their potential. We 
need to do more to celebrate and promote 
Wirral’s distinctive appeal.  

What do we already know?

• In 2013 2.62m jobs were in the creative 
economy accounting for 1 in every 12 
jobs.9

• Largest sectors include IT, software and 
computer services, advertising and 
marketing, music, performing and visual 
arts, publishing and Films, TV, Video,  
Radio and Photography.9

• 139,000 people are employed in the 
Cultural and Creative Industries and the 
Arts across the North West and has the 
second largest Creative Economy in the 
UK, after London and the South East.7

• £12.4 billion was the aggregate turnover  
of businesses in the UK arts and culture 
industry in 2011.9

• Wirral’s Floral Pavilion attracted 200,000 
visitors in 2015 and the Williamson 
attracted 25,000 visitors.10

Page 83



22

What will we do over the next five years?

• We will develop creative and digital hubs  
to support local groups, organisations and 
individual artists.

• We will develop the economic potential  
of sites with significant heritage aspects 
including Port Sunlight, Hamilton Square 
and Birkenhead Park.

• We will explore opportunities to develop 
the Williamson Art Gallery and the Priory 
Museum as workspaces for local artists and 
groups. 

How will we measure if we’re getting
this right?

• Increase the number of businesses in  
the creative sector.

• Increase the value of the creative  
economy in Wirral.

THE WIRRAL PLAN: A 2020 VISION

Page 84



WIRRAL’S CULTURE STRATEGY

2323

WIRRAL’S CULTURE STRATEGY

Page 85



24

hOW WE WILL DELIVER ThIS STRATEGY

The delivery of this culture strategy 
will be in partnership with local 
residents and community groups, as 
well as public, private and voluntary 
sector organisations. 

We will deliver the ambitions 
outlined within this strategy through 
the following action plans and other 
key strategies and plans which focus 
on leisure, tourism, parks and open 
spaces, volunteering, and health and 
wellbeing.

We recognise in Wirral that we cannot deliver 
this strategy without working closely with 
regional and national organisations and we are 
committed to working more effectively and 
strategically with Arts Council England to 
deliver the aims and ambitions set out in our 
culture strategy.  

The agreed actions will be delivered over the 
lifetime of this strategy with detailed project 
plans to be developed to ensure there is 
regular review and monitoring of the actions.  

There will also be further engagement and 
consultation with residents, partner 
organisations and other stakeholders as  
we develop more detailed action plans.

An annual report will be prepared which  
will outline progress of the actions and 
demonstrate the outcomes that have been 
achieved through the delivery of the strategy.

THE WIRRAL PLAN: A 2020 VISION

Page 86



WIRRAL’S CULTURE STRATEGY

25

1.  develop creative partnerships and a cultural events programme to promote arts,  
 culture and heritage in Wirral

What do we need to do? By when Lead organisation

Establish a Wirral Cultural Partnership which is sector 
led and provides a forum for networking, new ideas 
and future development of Wirral’s arts, culture and 
heritage offer. 

July 2016
Arts, Heritage and 

Cultural 
Organisations

Complete a Wirral audit of arts, heritage and cultural 
events and activities that will inform a programme to 
be delivered by local and community organisations in 
constituencies over the next five years. 

October 
2016

Wirral Cultural 
Partnership

Establish a knowledge and funding hub for small arts 
and cultural organisations in Wirral. October 

2016

Wirral Cultural 
Partnership

Funding Partners

ACTION PLANS

2. Increase resident and visitor participation in Wirral’s arts, culture and heritage   
 offer to promote its educational, social and wellbeing benefits

What do we need to do? By when Lead organisation

Establish a cultural ambassador programme for 
Wirral. 

November 
2016 

Wirral Cultural 
Partnership

Develop a calendar of events and activities and 
publicise through a central website and explore the 
use of technology and social media campaigns to 
encourage resident and visitor participation in arts, 
culture and heritage.     

October 
2016

Wirral Council 
Marketing Team
Wirral Cultural 

Partnership

Work with families, youth organisations and schools  
to increase participation in cultural education from   
an early age. 

December 
2016

Wirral Council
Wirral Schools

Youth 
Organisations

Work with Conservation Areas Wirral and historic 
groups to refresh the heritage strategy and agree a 
specific programme of projects for the next 5 years.

April 2017

Conservation Areas 
Wirral

Wirral Council

Identify investment opportunities for community 
arts and culture projects. April 2017

Wirral Culture Team
Funding 

Organisations
Page 87



26

3. Promote Wirral on an international stage as part of the Liverpool city Region to  
  attract world class arts, heritage and culture events and exhibitions

What do we need to do? By when Lead organisation

Develop Wirral’s unique  marketing approach as a 
cultural destination.

June 2016 

Wirral Council 
Marketing Team 
Wirral Cultural 

Partnership

Support the establishment of a Liverpool City Region 
Culture Partnership as part of the devolution 
agreement.

April 2016
Liverpool City 

Region Combined 
Authority

Work in partnership with Culture Liverpool to deliver 
major cultural events over the next five years.
The 2016-17 programme will focus on the following 
events:
• Tall Ships
• November 5th Firework Display
• Somme Remembrance 

2016 – 2021
Culture Liverpool

Wirral Culture Team

Work in partnership with Liverpool Film Office to 
identify future potential filming opportunities in 
Wirral.

September 
2016

Liverpool Film Office

Wirral Council

Deliver tourism marketing which promotes Wirral’s 
visitor offer including culture:
• Discover Wirral (shorts breaks)
• Wonders of Wirral (day breaks)

Spring 2016
Summer 2016 Wirral Council Visitor 

Economy Team

Conduct a comprehensive visitor research study. April 2017 Wirral Council Visitor 
Economy Team

Establish a Liverpool City Region theatre and 
conference venue hub. April 2017 Liverpool City 

Region Partners

Explore opportunities to attract funding to develop an 
iconic cultural visitor attraction. April 2017 Wirral Culture Team

Explore potential bids to host exciting, ground-
breaking arts and cultural events in Wirral. April 2017 Wirral Culture Team

Work with world class Wirral artists to develop a high 
quality, high profile-raising event that celebrates the 
outstanding artists of Wirral.

April 2017 Wirral Culture Team

THE WIRRAL PLAN: A 2020 VISION

Page 88



WIRRAL’S CULTURE STRATEGY

27

4. Maximise the contribution of the arts, heritage and culture to the local economy

What do we need to do? By when Lead organisation

Undertake an economic impact assessment of the 
arts, heritage and culture sector in Wirral to identify a 
baseline position and explore future opportunities to 
support and grow the sector.

December 
2016 

Wirral Council
Wirral Chamber of 

Commerce
Wirral Cultural 

Partnership

Explore future operating models for cultural assets in 
Wirral to maximise their contribution to the local 
economy.

December 
2016

Wirral Council
Asset Owners

Explore the opportunities for creativity activity hubs 
to promote new and innovative creative industries 
in Wirral with a specific focus on music, film and 
creative arts.  

November 
2017

Wirral Council
Wirral Chamber of 

Commerce
Creative Industries 

Entrepreneurs

Explore potential opportunities for Wirral’s heritage 
and conservation assets to support tourism and the 
local economy. March 2017

Wirral Council
Conservation Areas 

Wirral
Historic England

Ensure the training offer for the arts, culture, heritage 
and tourism sector supports the priorities for 
business growth and development. March 2017

Wirral 
Metropolitan 

College

Maximise work related opportunities to engage 
students of all ages in the culture, arts and heritage 
sector, progress them into apprenticeships, jobs and 
ensure opportunities for continuous professional 
development.

March 2017
Wirral 

Metropolitan 
College

Page 89



28

THE WIRRAL PLAN: A 2020 VISION

CONCLUSION

In developing this strategy we have 
listened to what our organisations, 
residents and visitors have told us to 
identify the priorities for the culture 
Strategy and what we will focus on 
for the next five years.  

We have a huge amount of talent in Wirral and 
now we have an opportunity to harness this 
talent, not just to boost the economy, but to 
enrich and improve people’s lives. Working 
hard with all key partners and stakeholders,  
we are determined to ensure that residents 
and visitors alike can look forward to a dynamic 
and exciting future that puts arts, culture and 
creativity at the heart of everything we do.

Page 90



WIRRAL’S CULTURE STRATEGY

29

REFERENCES

1 Arts Council England (2014): The value of Arts and Culture to People and Society; 
http://www.artscouncil.org.uk/media/uploads/pdf/The-value-of-arts-and-culture-to-
people-and-society-An-evidence-review-Mar-2014.pdf - accessed 4/3/2016

2 Wirral Council (2015): Resident Survey 2015; https://www.wirral.gov.uk/about-
council/wirral-plan-2020-vision/wirral-resident-survey-2015  - accessed 4/3/2016

3 Wirral History & Heritage Association 

4 Wirral Council 2015   

5 Culture Liverpool (2015)

6 Culture Liverpool (2014) 

7 UKTI report (2014)

8 UK Music (2015): Wish You Were Here Report 2015; http://www.ukmusic.org/assets/
general/WYWH_2015Report.pdf - accessed 1/3/2016

9 Department for Culture, Media and Sport (2015): Creative Industries Economic 
Estimates January 2015; https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/
attachment_data/file/394668/Creative_Industries_Economic_Estimates_-_
January_2015.pdf - accessed 3/4/2015 

10 Wirral Council Visitor Figures (2015) 

Page 91



30

THE WIRRAL PARTNERSHIP

 

search: Wirral 2020

@wirral2020

Page 92



Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Wednesday, 30 November 2016

REPORT TITLE: 2016/17 Quarter 2 Wirral Plan 
Performance - Environment Theme

REPORT OF: Strategic Commissioner for Environment

REPORT SUMMARY
This report provides the 2016/17 Quarter 2 (July – September) performance report 
for Wirral Plan pledges under the Environment theme.  The report, which is included 
as Appendix 1, provides a description of the progress in Quarter 2 as well as 
providing available data in relation to a range of outcome indicators and supporting 
measures.  

At quarter 1, a range of feedback was provided by each of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees on the reports provided.  Following this, officers have met with 
the Committee Chairs and Spokespersons to review report provision.  This report 
pilots an approach agreed at that session to provide more detail in terms of 
performance against each of the pledges that fall within the remit of the Environment 
Committee.

Quarter Two Performance Summary

The key performance highlights for quarter 2 include:

 September saw a number of successful events such as the Festival of Transport 
in Birkenhead Park and the Wirral Golf Classic held in Hoylake.  As well as 
fulfilling the objectives of our leisure and culture strategies, these events have 
also contributed to Wirral’s visitor economy.

 Latest figures published for 2015/16 indicate that the volume of cyclists on 
Wirral’s roads increased by 14% compared to the previous year.  This growth 
leads to improved outcomes in relation to healthy lifestyles and clean transport.

 The latest data on smoking in Wirral shows a mixed picture with smoking 
prevalence showing an increase, but with smoking levels in pregnancy showing a 
significant decrease.  Of the 440 people supported through our stop smoking 
service between April and June, 224 were not smoking after 4 weeks of their 
involvement in the programme. A Smokefree Strategy is being developed with 
partners to develop an integrated approach to reduce smoking levels.

 The Takeaway for a Change initiative is progressing well in promoting healthy 
eating options with five schools now on board.  Alongside this, 89 takeaway 

Page 93

Agenda Item 8



businesses have signed up to the Eat Well Wirral scheme this year and are now 
taking steps to improve their healthy eating offer.

 Latest housing figures show the continuation of strong performance.  At Quarter 
2 there had been 759 homeless preventions against a target of 624, up 27% up 
on the same time last year.  We have delivered 1,529 home adaptations to 
support people to live independently and this is up 11% on last year.  We have 
also exceeded target bringing 446 empty properties back into use against a 
Quarter 2 target of 409.

 In terms of community safety, the overall number of crimes and reports of anti-
social behaviour have continued to fall In Wirral and have met and exceeded 
their targets respectively.  The greatest reductions have been in the crime 
hotspots such as Birkenhead where a coordinated partnership approach and 
targeted intervention work have led to reduced crime and anti-social behaviour.

 Street cleansing performance remains very high with our local environmental 
quality scores successfully exceeding targets again in Quarter 2.

 The latest data in relation to the recycling of domestic waste has fallen short of 
target. Performance in this area has levelled out which is a trend reflected 
nationally. The full business case in relation to future domestic refuse collection 
arrangements has been developed to support the Council in meeting its 2020 
target. 

 We continue to see strong performance in littering enforcement with the number 
of fixed penalty notices and the number of prosecutions exceeding and meeting 
target respectively.  Over 5,700 fixed penalty notices have been issued for 
littering offences with over 1,900 prosecutions being referred to the courts, out of 
these 1,398 were successful in bringing about a conviction.  Whilst the equivalent 
enforcement in respect of dog fouling has fallen short of target, performance has 
increased significantly from the previous year. 

RECOMMENDATION/S
That the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee notes the content of the 
report and highlights any areas requiring further clarification or action. 

Page 94



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S
1.1 To ensure Members of the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

have the opportunity to scrutinise the performance of the Council and partners 
in relation to delivering the Wirral Plan.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
2.1 This report has been developed in line with the approved performance 

management framework for the Wirral Plan.  As such, no other options were 
considered.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 The Wirral Plan is an outcome-focussed, partnership plan which has 16 
supporting strategies that set out how each of the 20 pledges will be 
delivered.  For each pledge, a partnership group has been established to 
drive forward delivery of the action plans set out in each of the supporting 
strategies.

3.2 A Wirral Plan Performance Management Framework has been developed to 
ensure robust monitoring arrangements are in place.  The Wirral Partnership 
has a robust approach to performance management to ensure all activity is 
regularly monitored and reviewed. 

3.3 Data for the identified indicators is released at different times throughout the 
year as a result not all Pledges will have results each quarterly reporting 
period. Some indicators can be reported quarterly and some only on an 
annual basis with annual figures reported in the quarter they become 
available.

3.4 For each of the indicators a RAGB (red, amber, green, blue) rating is provided 
against the target and tolerance levels set at the start of the reporting period, 
with blue indicating performance targets being exceeded.  There is also a 
trend key which shows whether performance has improved, remained static 
or deteriorated since the start of the Wirral Plan.

3.5 Work on the pledge community services are joined up and accessible is 
embedded across the range of Wirral Plan pledges so no individual pledge 
report is provided. 

3.6 All Wirral Plan performance reports are published on the performance page of 
the Council’s website.  This includes the high level Wirral Plan overview report 
and the detailed pledge reports which include updates on progress with all 
activities set out in supporting strategy action plans.

Page 95



4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
4.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
5.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS
6.1 There are none arising from this report.

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 
7.1 The performance management framework is aligned to the Council’s risk 

management strategy and both are regularly reviewed as part of corporate 
management processes.

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 
8.1 The priorities in the Wirral Plan pledges were informed by a range of 

consultations carried out in 2015 and 2016 including the Wirral resident 
survey.

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 The Wirral Plan equality impact assessment can be found at:
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-
assessments/equality-impact-assessments-2014-15/chief

REPORT AUTHOR:
Mike Callon
Team Leader – Performance and Scrutiny
telephone:  (0151) 691 8379
email:   michaelcallon@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
Appendix 1: Wirral Plan Environment Theme – 2016/17 Quarter 2 Pledge Reports.

REFERENCE MATERIAL
N/A

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 21 September 2016

Page 96

https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-assessments/equality-impact-assessments-2014-15/chief
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-assessments/equality-impact-assessments-2014-15/chief
mailto:michaelcallon@wirral.gov


 
 
 
 
 
Appendix 1 
  
Wirral Plan Environment Theme 
2016-17 Quarter 2 Pledge Reports 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Wirral Plan 2020 

P
age 97



Wirral Plan Indicator Indicator Type
Wirral Plan 

Start

End of Year 

Target
Q2 Target

2016-17 

Q1

2016-17 

Q2
Trend

Direction of 

Improvement
Comment

Increase the number of people 

who regularly use the boroughs 

parks and open spaces

Annual
67%

2015-16
67% Higher is better

Adult (14+) Participation in sport 

(at least once per week)
Annual

38.2%

2014-15
39.5% Higher is better

Leisure and cultural opportunities for all

Overview from the Pledge Sponsor 
 
Wirral Council and partners have continued to meet and work together with passion and energy over the last three months to achieve o ur pledge of leisure and cultural opportunities for all in Wirral. 
 
It's been a fantastic few months with plenty going on for everyone across Wirral.  September saw various events such as the Festival of Transport in Birkenhea d Park and the Wirral Golf Classic held in Hoylake. For those 
of us who enjoy art and creativity, the Wirral Arts Festival  took place during the first two weeks of October and for wildli fe enthusiasts, the Wirral Wader Festival  took place at the start of the month.   
We also have some exciting events coming up in November. The International Guitar Festival of Great Britain (formerly the Wir ral International Guitar Festival) returns to the stages of the Floral Pavilion for three weeks of 
musical entertainment. This year, we are also trying something new for Bonfire night in partnership with Liverpool City Counc il, sharing a cross-river firework display which will bring hundreds of residents from Merseyside 
to the banks of the River Mersey. 
 
In October, Wirral Council launched a new publication 'Wirral View' which will be delivered to every home and business in Wirral  with the aim of keeping residents informed about Council and partner services as well as 
what's happening across Wirral. A new website has been launched in conjunction with the publication where you will be able to  see events and local news stories. I hope that you will enjoy this new publication and use it to 
explore the leisure and cultural opportunities that our borough has to offer. 
 
This month Cabinet will consider proposals around a Hoylake Golf Resort which promises  to be an iconic international project   bringing new jobs, prosperity and tourists to Wirral, boosting our economy and visitor 
numbers. Tourism is an important part of our growth plan and supports our pledges around a vibrant economy and jobs and it ha s also has key links to the Wirral Plan pledges including  Leisure and Culture.  

 

P
age 98



Supporting Measure
Type of 

Indicator

Wirral Plan 

Start

End of Year 

Target
Q2 Target

2016-17 

Q1

2016-17 

Q2
Trend

Direction of 

Improvement
Comment

Increase the number of national 

quality awards for Wirral's parks, 

coastal sites and open spaces: 

Green Flags

Annual
22

2015-16
23

24

Blue
↑ Higher is better

4 new parks have been awarded Green Flag status for the first 

time (Dawstone Park, Harrison Park, Hamilton Square and 

Frankby Cemetery).  Meols park Green Flag was not renewed. 

This data was updated on the 15th November 2016 as an error 

was spotted where a Green Heritage Site Award was not included 

in the total.

Utilisation of outdoor space for 

exercise / health reasons
Annual

20.7%

2013-14
21.5%

26.5%

Blue
↑ Higher is better

Increased the volume percentage 

of people cycling
Annual

0%

(index for 

2013/14)

8%
19%

Blue
↑ Higher is better

This figure represents an increased performance between 

2014/15 and 2015/16 of 14% which has exceeded expectations 

and has exceeded the cumulative target set for 2018/19.  Health 

and financial benefits will have been experienced by those cycling 

within and through Wirral. Fine weather together with actively 

promoting the benefits of cycling has contributed to the success of 

2015/16.  A review of annual targets will be undertaken as part of 

the next business planning exercise to ensure our challenging 

ambitions continue.

Increase visitor numbers each 

year based on the 2014 baseline 

(m)

Annual
7.08

2013
7.87

8.20

Green
↑ Higher is better

Increase value of tourism 

economy by at least 5% each 

year (£m).

Annual
£327.85

2013
£372.75

£385.80

Green
↑ Higher is better

P
age 99



Wirral residents live healthier lives

Overview from the Pledge Sponsor  
 
Work is progressing across all elements of the pledge plan: 
 
Action to tackle tobacco use 
•The new provider of Stop Smoking Services in Wirral '- ABL Wirral' - began operating in April with a launch event held in October 2016. Between April and June ABL Wirral supported 440 to set a quit date, 224 of which 
sere still not smoking at 4 weeks. 
•The service works with pregnant women to help them stop smoking, between April and June, 42 pregnant women set a quit date w ith the service, 30% of whom reported successfully quitting.     
•Data released in quarter 2 shows an increase in the adult smoking rate to 18.9% against a target of 16.5% and a previous rat e of 17.2%. There are concerns around how comparable this data is with previous years due 
to a change in the survey used to collect this data and the overall sample size.  
 
Action to tackle alcohol misuse 
•Reducing the Strength - this voluntary scheme working with local stores who sell alcohol continues to have high engagement with  local retailers. 46 businesses have signed up to the scheme together with 30 affiliates 
who are compliant with reducing the strength criteria, we therefore have 76 retailers not selling super strength alcohol across the borough. Affiliates are verified long term non venders of super strength alcohol  
• The public health team are analysing hospital admission data to inform the development of local action to address alcohol m isuse e.g. development of cumulative impact policies, development of a health objective for 
the licensing process   
 
Action to promote healthy eating 
• Takeaway for a change is progressing well with good engagement with local schools and local takeaways to promote healthy ea ting options. Five schools are now signed up to the initiative 
• 89 businesses have signed up to the Eat Well Wirral scheme so far this year, these businesses have taken a number of steps to improve their healthy eating order e.g. using a healthier cooking oil e.g. rapeseed 
 
Quarter three will see further action to understand the smoking prevalence data which was released in quarter 2. Work will al so take place to review the overall Healthier Lives Pledge to ensure that this wide ranging 
pledge is making appropriate links across the wider Wirral Plan and that we are addressing the issues that are important for local people to help them to stay healthy for as long as possible.  P

age 100



Wirral Plan Indicator Indicator Type
Wirral Plan 

Start

End of Year 

Target
Q2 Target

2016-17 

Q1

2016-17 

Q2
Trend

Direction of 

Improvement
Comment

Admission episodes for alcohol 

related conditions
Annual

853.0

2013-14
606.0 Lower is better

Smoking Prevalence in Adults 

(age 18 and over) in Wirral
Annual

17.2%
16.5%

18.9%

Red
↓ Lower is better

When analysing this performance it is important to note:

• The number of people surveyed in 2015 was smaller than in the 

previous years. A smaller sample size can mean that results are 

less reliable as the people chosen to complete the survey are less 

likely to be representative of the population as a whole e.g. the 

increase in the rate of smoking from 2014 to 2015 is 

approximately a difference of 10 people

• The survey used to gather the data has changed which does not 

allow for a direct comparison

• The 2015 Wirral rate is not significantly different to the North 

West figure

• Wirral's carbon monoxide validation rate for 2015 is better than 

both England and the North West.  This is a more reliable 

measure of whether a person has quit smoking as this measures 

levels of carbon monoxide in the persons breath, which  indicates 

whether or not they have smoked recently.

• Reducing smoking rates in Wirral requires action by all partners. 

A Smokefree Strategy is being developed as part of the Healthier 

Lives pledge work plan.  A workshop is planned for 23rd 

November 2016 for Wirral partners to debate the delivery plan, 

agree actions and timelines.

• The local provider of stop smoking services, ABL Wirral are 

developing referral pathways across the health and social care 

system and increasing the visibility of their service within local 

communities e.g. they are meeting with GPs on 17th Nov 2016 

and Practice Nurses in December 2016 to promote the service.

Excess Weight in Adults Annual
66.2%

2012-14
n/a Lower is better

Supporting Measure
Type of 

Indicator

Wirral Plan 

Start

End of Year 

Target
Q2 Target

2016-17 

Q1

2016-17 

Q2
Trend

Direction of 

Improvement
Comment

Smoking status at time of delivery Annual
10.5%

2014-15
10.0%

7.7%

Blue
↑ Lower is better

There has been a reduction in the rate of mothers smoking at the 

time of their baby's delivery from 10.5% to 7.7%. It is important to 

note that the method of calculating this data has changed when 

compared to previous years and that there are still concerns 

regarding data collection methods. If this were calculated using 

the previous method 8.6% would be the value for comparison. 

This is still a significant improvement and would still be reporting 

as blue (better than target) .

Smoking prevalence at the age of 

15 - current smokers
Annual

7.4%

2014-15
7.4% Lower is better

Prevalence of Healthy Weight in 

Adults in Wirral
Annual

32.9%

2012-14
32.9% Lower is better

P
age 101



Wirral Plan Indicator Indicator Type
Wirral Plan 

Start

End of Year 

Target
Q2 Target

2016-17 

Q1

2016-17 

Q2
Trend

Direction of 

Improvement
Comment

3,500 new homes will be built by 

2020
Annual n/a 1,342 Higher is better

Improve 2,250 private sector 

properties
Annual n/a 840 Higher is better

Bring 1,250 empty properties 

back into use
Quarterly n/a 529 409

388

Blue

446

Green
n/a Higher is better

A further 58 new empty properties have been brought back into 

use during Quarter 2 which has enabled us to again exceed 

expectations.

Good quality housing that meets the needs of residents

Overview from the Pledge Sponsor 
 
Significant progress has been made to the key priorities enabling the provision of  good quality housing  during Quarter 2 20 16/17 and the detailed actions which support them. 
  
Highlights for Quarter 2 include: 
-  The survey to ‘identify barriers preventing long term empty properties being brought back into use and what incentives would encourage owne rs of empty properties to bring them back into use’ has been completed.  
The survey has produced a good response rate from landlords, with the results being used to inform service improvements.  
-  A further 35 new affordable homes have already been delivered during the first two quarters of 2016/17.  
-  The number of empty homes being bought back into use continues to progress well with the Q2 target being exceeded.  
-  Work is progressing well with Local Partnerships to finalise ‘Wirral’s Housing Ask’ requirements for Government.  
-  Work is progressing at both Liverpool City Region (LCR) and local level with Local Partnerships to deliver an LCR Housing Str ategy. 
-  We have been working with a variety of partners such as Energy Projects Plus to develop targeted campaigns to address poor qu ality housing and fuel poverty.   
   
During Quarter 3 the welfare reform working group will continue to meet regularly, bringing together key partners to co -ordinate a strategic response to welfare reform. The Strategic review of sheltered housing services 
for older people will continue through the analysis of data which will help inform the future programme of extra care and reconfiguration where appropriate of existing schemes into  enhanced sheltered housing services. 
We will work with the newly appointed Liverpool City Region Co-ordinator to respond to and progress the feasibility of a programed intake in relation to the Liverpool City region Syrian Resettlement Programme. 

P
age 102



Supporting Measure
Type of 

Indicator

Wirral Plan 

Start

End of Year 

Target
Q2 Target

2016-17 

Q1

2016-17 

Q2
Trend

Direction of 

Improvement
Comment

1,200 homes requiring mandatory 

or additional licenses will be 

inspected by 2020

Annual n/a 210 Higher is better

An increase in the percentage of 

people over 50 living in 

appropriate housing, that meets 

their needs

Annual
52.3

2015-16
53.0 Higher is better

2,000 home adaptations to be 

delivered each year
Quarterly

699

Q1 15- 16
2,000 1,000

762

Blue

1,529

Blue
↑ Higher is better

We have seen an increase in referrals linked to a drive from 

Health & Social Care to prevent hospital admission/readmission & 

to aid hospital discharge; however we are unsure if this will be 

sustained. An increase of 11% has been achieved compared to 

the same period last year.

Reduce homelessness through 

prevention
Quarterly

316

Q1 15- 16
1,250 624

387

Blue

759

Blue
↑ Higher is better

The Quarter 2 target for preventions has been surpassed and is 

an increase of 27% on the comparable period for last year. 

Various reasons have resulted in improved partnership working 

between the Housing Options Team and other relevant local 

agencies during 2016/17. This has led to the early identification of 

households and individuals who are likely to be vulnerable to 

homelessness, providing sufficient time to arrange appropriate 

interventions and support mechanisms. It is envisaged that the 

division will continue to perform well against this indicator, 

although it is not clear at this stage whether it will achieve the 

same level of preventions next quarter.

P
age 103



Wirral Plan Indicator Indicator Type
Wirral Plan 

Start

End of Year 

Target
Q2 Target

2016-17 

Q1

2016-17 

Q2
Trend

Direction of 

Improvement
Comment

Reports of anti-social behaviour 

(ASB) to Merseyside Police
Quarterly

11,837

2014-15
10,749 6,199

2,764

Blue

5,777

Blue
↑ Lower is better

Proportion of residents who state 

they feel safe when outside in 

their local area (daytime)

Annual
88%

Nov 2015
89% Higher is better

Proportion of residents who state 

they feel safe when outside in 

their local area (After Dark)

Annual
55%

Nov 2015
56% Higher is better

Number of crimes recorded by 

the police
Quarterly

19,061

2014-15
20,954 10,477

4,906

Green

9,841

Green
↑ Lower is better

Percentage of repeat incidents of 

hate crime
Quarterly 0%

Supporting Measure
Type of 

Indicator

Wirral Plan 

Start

End of Year 

Target
Q2 Target

2016-17 

Q1

2016-17 

Q2
Trend

Direction of 

Improvement
Comment

Number of FPN's issued for 

environmental offences (Littering)
Quarterly n/a 10,000 5,050

2,631

Green

5,742

Blue
n/a Higher is better

The number of FPN's issued so far during 2016/17 have 

continued to exceed expectations however the rate of success 

may slow down as we enter into the autumn and winter months.

Number of FPN's issued for 

environmental offences (dog 

fouling)

Quarterly n/a 200 70
24

Blue

39

Red
n/a Higher is better

Although the cumulative number of FPNs falls short of the Q2 

target, enforcement officers regularly report that a very high 

percentage of dog walkers are witnessed removing fouling and 

this accounts for the shortfall in Q2 figures.

Resources will be targeted to hotspot locations determined by 

resident demand, this is already having a positive affect.

Wirral’s neighbourhoods are safe

Overview from the Pledge Sponsor 
 
There has been continued progress in quarter 2 with evidence of a continued reduction in crime and anti-social behaviour which demonstrates the positive impact that partnership initiatives are having. 
  
Compared to last year there have been reductions across virtually all crime categories and anti-social behaviour reported to the Police. The increase in reports in relation to violence-related crime are considered to be a positive trend, as this 
is as a result of initiatives being delivered to increase the reporting of domestic abuse. 
  
Whilst  crime  has reduced across Wirral, the greatest reductions have been in the crime 'hotspots'.  In central Birkenhead a complex mix of ‘crime generators’ such as the shopping centre, the night time economy and levels of deprivation 
coincide to create a number of challenging crime and disorder issues.  The success of coordinating partner interventions to target areas of greatest need has been demonstrated by further reducing the proportion of Wirral's crimes that 
occur in central Birkenhead, Wirral’s main crime 'hotspot'.  
  
In the coming months initiatives will target the usual increase in traditional crimes as a consequence of the Festive Season such as  burglary, theft from cars, alcohol related violence and domestic violence.  However, there will also be an 
emphasis on raising awareness to prevent a range of cyber-crimes as children and family members are introduced to new technology. 

P
age 104



Wirral Plan Indicator Indicator Type
Wirral Plan 

Start

End of Year 

Target
Q2 Target

2016-17 

Q1

2016-17 

Q2
Trend

Direction of 

Improvement
Comment

Maintain local environmental 

quality (LEQ) via the street 

cleansing of litter, detritus, graffiti.

Quarterly n/a 93.0% 93.0%
94.2%

Blue

97.3%

Blue
n/a Higher is better

Street cleansing audit scores remain consistently high and within 

target. Officers are undertaking numerous analysis exercises and 

service re-prioritisation to improve standards within areas. This 

work will take effect in February 2017

Achieve 50% kerbside recycling 

of domestic waste by 2020.
Quarterly

36.30%

2014- 15
50.00% 39.80%

35.70%

Red
↓ Higher is better

Performance for Q1 2016-17 has been lower than for Quarter 1 

last year (the same quarter achieved 39.05%).  This is partly due 

to approx. 700 tonnes of recycling stockpiled and not processed 

within this quarter (we would expect the tonnage of recycling to 

even out over the year), but also due to an increase of 1.4% of 

residual waste collected.

This is a similar trend to neighbouring authorities - who have seen 

higher increases in residual waste collected than Wirral (between 

1.7% and 11% increase). The collected tonnages of dry recycling 

and garden waste have also increased, but not by as much as the 

residual waste.

Attractive local environment for Wirral residents

Overview from the Pledge Sponsor 
 
The Attractive Local Environment steering group has continued to work together to progress the key themes and actions of the pledge delivery plan. This quarter the steering group has focused on arrangements to work 
with Wirral’s future generations to establish their role as environmental champions. This work involves engaging the Borough’ s schools on various initiatives including Eco School and Green Flag status. 
  
The steering group also received an overview of the work being undertaken to complete the Full Business Case exercise to iden tify recommendations for the Council’s future domestic refuse collection arrangements. 
Transforming the Council’s recycling performance to achieve 50% recycling by 2020 is one of the key objectives of the Wirral Plan and the preferred option to be recommended is projected to achieve this.    
  
During Quarter 2 local environmental quality standards have continued to exceed the set target of 93% (acceptable at time of inspection). Other highlights for quarter 2 include the following:   
  
-  Fixed penalty notices issued for dog fouling offences have resulted in the successful prosecutions of the first four cases re ferred to court due to non-payment, the Council have named and shamed the people concerned 
to signify how serious we take these offences.     
-  Over 5,700 fixed penalty notices have been issued for littering offences with over 1,900 prosecutions being referred to the c ourts,  out of these 1,398 were successful in bringing about a conviction. 
  
During Quarter 3 we will continue our enforcement activities and start the improvement work on the identified grot spot locat ions across the borough having previously attempted to engage with landowners. We are 
determined to clean these locations up and keep on top of them to ensure they no longer create a blight on the local environm ent.    

P
age 105



Supporting Measure
Type of 

Indicator

Wirral Plan 

Start

End of Year 

Target
Q2 Target

2016-17 

Q1

2016-17 

Q2
Trend

Direction of 

Improvement
Comment

Number of FPN's issued for 

environmental offences (Littering)
Quarterly n/a 10,000 5,050

2,631

Green

5,742

Blue
n/a Higher is better

The number of FPN's issued so far during 2016/17 have 

continued to exceed expectations however the rate of success 

may slow down as we enter into the autumn and winter months.

Number of FPN's issued for 

environmental offences (dog 

fouling)

Quarterly n/a 200 70
24

Blue

39

Red
n/a Higher is better

Although the cumulative number of FPNs falls short of the Q2 

target, enforcement officers regularly report that a very high 

percentage of dog walkers are witnessed removing fouling and 

this accounts for the shortfall in Q2 figures.

Resources will be targeted to hotspot locations determined by 

resident demand, this is already having a positive affect.

Number of prosecutions executed 

for environmental offences (Litter 

and dog Fouling)

Quarterly n/a 3,840 1,920
960

Green

1,920

Green
n/a Higher is better

Levels of prosecutions for littering are in line to exceed the levels 

delivered in 2015/16. Dog fouling cases are starting to come 

through following the establishment of the service in May 2016.

People who think litter is a 

problem in their local area.
Annual

45.0%

2015-16
44.0% Lower is better

People who think dog fouling is a 

problem in their local area.
Annual

56.0%

2015-16
55.0% Lower is better

Reduce the total amount of waste 

produced by each household.
Quarterly

502.15

2014-15
502.15 258.00

138.35

Green
↔ Lower is better

This Quarter 1 2016-17 performance is an increase compared 

with Quarter 1 last year (which saw 130.2kh/hh collected).  This is 

a similar trend to neighbouring authorities in Merseyside and 

Cheshire.

Maximise landfill 

diversion/recovery of residual 

waste

Annual
63.70%

2014-15
50.00% Higher is better

Increase the % of waste collected 

for composting/AD
Quarterly

10.75%

2014-15
15.00% 14.00%

13.58%

Amber
↔ Higher is better

As at the equivalent reporting period last year (Quarter 1) the 

composting rate was 13.56%, so there has been a very slight 

increase in percentage of Wirral's waste composted.  The quantity 

of garden waste collected actually increased by 1.5% compared to 

last year, but this increase was not as much as the increase in 

residual waste collected, so the overall increase in recycling rate 

was negligible.

Increase level of school recycling Annual
35.00%

2014-15
50.00% Higher is better

Key  
 

Trend  
↑ Performance Improving     ↓ Performance Deteriorating     ↔  Performance Sustained    N/A – No comparable data available 
Based on Wirral Plan start date with the exception of:  2,000 home adaptations to be delivered each year and Reduce homelessness through prevention, Reports of Anti-social behaviour 
(ASB) to Merseyside Police, Number of crimes recorded by the police, Achieve 50% kerbside recycling of domestic waste by 2020, Reduce the total amount of waste produced by each 
household  and Increase the % of waste collected for composting/AD - compared to same period in previous year. 
 
Target Rating (Blue, Green, Amber, Red)  based on agreed tolerance range for individual measures 
Blue - Above Target           Green - Within Target          Amber -  Below Target          Red - Significantly Below Target. 

P
age 106



1

Wirral
ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

30 NOVEMBER 2016

REPORT TITLE FINANCIAL MONITORING 
QUARTER 2

REPORT OF ASSISTANT DIRECTOR : 
FINANCE SECTION 151 OFFICER

REPORT SUMMARY

This report and appendices sets out the projected revenue and capital monitoring 
position for 2016/17 as at the close of quarter 2 (30 September 2016).
 
The quarter two revenue forecast is for an overall underspend of £0.2 million for the 
year (£1.1 million overspend was forecast at quarter 1). The Families and Wellbeing 
overspend increased during the period but has been compensated for by increased 
savings within treasury management. 

The quarter two capital report updates the capital programme and reflected 
significant re-profiling of schemes between years to reduce the 2016/17 capital 
programme to £38.1 million. Expenditure after the second quarter concluded was 
£10.6 million.

.

Recommendations

1. That members note the report and appendices.

Page 107

Agenda Item 9



2

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

1.1 To ensure Members have the appropriate information to review the budget 
performance of the authority.

 
2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 The appendices contain the standard authority wide capital and revenue monitoring 
reports. A New Operating Model is to be introduced within the Council and 
monitoring arrangements will be reviewed once the New Operating Model 
arrangements are functioning and embedded. 

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 Under the New Operating Model, existing directorates will be superseded with new 
structures based around a Strategic Hub, Business Support function and a number 
of Delivery Units. Overview and Scrutiny Committees have already been 
reconstituted away from a directorate basis to align with Wirral’s 20/20 Vision 
themes three of Business, People and Environment. 

3.2 A budget realignment process has taken place to align budgets from November 1 to 
the New Operating Model. In very broad terms People will cover areas previously 
within Adult Social Care and Children and Young People, Environment will cover 
areas within Regeneration and Environment, whilst Business will cover 
Transformation and Resources plus aspects of the Regeneration and Environment 
budget.

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 The Financial implications are contained within the appendices. These explain the 
latest revenue budget and forecast spend positions and the capital programme 
budget and spend to date.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS; ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS

6.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report.

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS

7.1 There are none directly relating to this report. The monitoring of financial 
performance is important to ensure robust financial control procedures are in place.  

Page 108



3

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION

8.1 No consultation has been carried out in relation to this report.

9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

9.1 This report is essentially a monitoring report which reports on financial performance.

REPORT AUTHOR: Peter Molyneux
Senior Manager
Telephone (0151) 666 3389
Email petemolyneux@wirral.gov.uk

ANNEXES

Appendix 1 –   Revenue Monitoring 2016/17 Quarter 2   
Appendix 2 –   Capital Monitoring 2016/17 Quarter 2

SUBJECT HISTORY

Council Meeting Date
Cabinet
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee

18 July 2016
21 September 2016

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Appendix 1

Wirral
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES

NOVEMBER 2016

REPORT TITLE REVENUE MONITORING 
2016/17 QUARTER 2

REPORT OF ASSISTANT DIRECTOR : 
FINANCE SECTION 151 
OFFICER

REPORT SUMMARY
This report sets out the projected revenue position for 2016/17 as at the end 
of quarter 2 (30 September 2016). 

The latest position forecasts an underspend of £0.2 million for 2016/17.  This 
is an improvement of £1.3 million on the quarter 1 forecast (£1.1 million 
overspent).

The overspend in the Families and Wellbeing Directorate increased during 
the second quarter. A change to Treasury Management policy to adopt the 
annuity method for calculating Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) in respect 
of capital financing if agreed by Council will however compensate. This 
change will contribute a significant one-off saving in 2016/17 and cover the 
overspends elsewhere in the 2016/17 budget.

The report also provides detail of the re-allocation of existing budgets to 
reflect the New Operating Model which was implemented on 1 November 
2016.

Page 111



2

The headline position is shown in the graph.

Graph 1:  Wirral Council – 2016/17 General Fund Variance

1 2 3 4

0.000.00

2.002.00

4.004.00

6.00

2015/16 Projected Outturn £m

Quarter

£m

This is a key decision which affects all Wards within the Borough.

Recommendations

1. The quarter 2 forecast year end underspend of £0.2 million, which 
contains a number of significant variances, be noted. 

2. Officers identify actions and take measures to assist to reduce the impact 
of the projected overspends.

3. The significant in-year contribution offered by the change in Treasury 
Management assumed in the projections be noted.

4. The realignment of budgets to reflect the New Operating Budget are 
noted.

Page 112



3

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

1.1 The Council, having set a Budget at the start of the financial year, needs to 
ensure the delivery of this Budget is achieved.  Consequently there is a 
requirement to regularly monitor progress so corrective action can be taken 
when required which is enhanced with the regular reporting of the financial 
position.

1.2 The New operating Model was implemented from 1 November 2016 and this 
requires the re-alignment of budgets to accord with the Model. The changes 
are more than ‘normal’ virements so will require the approval of Council.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 This is a monitoring report but any options to improve the monitoring and 
budget accuracy will be considered.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 CHANGES TO THE AGREED BUDGET

3.1.1 The 2016/17 Budget was agreed by Council on 3 March 2016. Any increase 
in the Budget has to be agreed by full Council.  Changes to the Budget since 
it was set are summarised in Table 1. 

Table 1:  2016/17 Original & Revised Net Budget by Directorate
Original 

Net 
Budget

Approved 
Budget 

Changes Prior 
Qtrs

Approved 
Budget 

Changes Qtr 
2

Revised 
Net Budget

£ms £ms £ms £ms
FWB - Adult Social Care 71,311             5,400              298 77,009
FWB – Children & Young 
People,

67,773             5,000              516 73,289

FWB - Further Areas: 
Safeguarding, Schools, 
Leisure, Public Health

9,383               100              126 9,609

Regeneration & 
Environment

83,607  -              193 83,800

Transformation & 
Resources

24,730               500              193 25,423

Corporate Growth, 
Savings & Grant

7,791 -           9,400 -         1,326 -2,935

Net Cost of Services 264,595             1,600                -   266,195

3.1.2 The prior period budget change includes the £1.6 million call on General Fund 
Balances approved by Council on 17 October 2016. The changes also reflect 
the allocation of £11.1 million of the Revenue Budget Contingency agreed by 
Cabinet 18 July 2016. This saw £3.9 million to Adult Social Services, £5 
million to Children’s Services, £0.5 million tor Transformation and Resources 
and £1.7 million in respect of corporate budgets.

Page 113



4

3.1.3 The change within Quarter Two relates to the distribution of the 1% pay 
increase from the corporate budget where it was originally held. This has no 
effect on the bottom line budget. 

3.1.4 There has also been movement from Corporate Growth, Savings & Grant to 
FWB – Children & Young People of £250,000. This is a distribution of the 
Revenue Budget Contingency 2016/17 as per Cabinet 3 October 2016. This 
is to meet increased residential care fees where necessary due to pressure 
resulting from the National Living Wage and Working Time Directive.

3.1.5 A New Operating Model for the Council was agreed by Employment & 
Appointments Committee on 25 July 2016. Since then a number of 
refinements have been made to reflect the outcome of consultation and 
further developments. Work has been undertaken to reallocate the budget in 
the New Operating Model and Table 2 below shows the provisional budget 
re-allocations on a full year basis with additional detail provided in Appendix 
2. The New Operating Model commenced from 1 November 2016 and it is 
possible that further adjustments will be identified.

Table 2: 2016/17 New Operating Model Budgets
New Operating Model Budget 2016-17 Net Expenditure 
Function £000's
Chief Executiv'e Unit 265
Children Services 44,197
Transformation 655
Strategic Hub 109,856
Business Services 23,889
Delivery 90,018
Corporate Growth and Savings 2,685-                             
Total 266,195

3.1.6 The New Operating Model realigns current budgets and is cost neutral. 
However the Model involves revising the existing reporting structure which is 
beyond the scope of ‘normal’ day to day budget virements so the revised 
Budget  allocations should be referred to Council for approval

3.1.7 A further development is the allocation of Budgets against the themes to the 
Wirral Plan: A 2020 Vision. As the budgets are refined this will assist with 
future monitoring by the Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

Table 3: 2016/17 Budget by 2020 Vision Themes 

Theme Net Expenditure £000
People 153,655
Environment 58,678
Business 53,862
Total 266,195

Page 114



5

3.2 PROJECTIONS AND KEY ISSUES

3.2.1 The projected outturn position as at the end of September 2016, key issues 
emerging and Directorate updates are detailed in the following sections. 

Table 4: 2016/17 Projected Budget variations by Directorate £000’s
(Under) 

Overspend
Quarter 2

FWB - Adult Social Care 77,009 80,514 3,505 R 3,505
FWB – Children & Young People 73,039 78,179 5,140 R 1,840
FWB - Further Areas: 
Safeguarding, Schools, Leisure, 
Public Health

9,609 10,345 736 R 436

Regeneration & Environment 83,800 82,780 -1,020 Y -1,020
Transformation & Resources 25,423 17,869 -7,554 Y -1,354
Corporate Growth, Savings & Grant -2,685 -3,685 -1,000 Y -1,000
TOTAL 266,195 266,002 -193 2,407

Change 
from 
prev 

Directorates Revised 
Budget

Forecast 
Outturn

RAGBY 
Class

The report classifies the forecast under/overspends for the above areas using 
a colour RAGBY rating. The ratings are defined as follows:
 Extreme: Overspends Red (over +£301k), Underspend Yellow (over -

£301k).
 Acceptable:  Amber (+£141k to +£300k), Green (range from +£140k to -

£140k); Blue (-£141k to -£300k).

3.3 DIRECTORATE UPDATES

3.3.1 Families and Wellbeing: Adult Social Care

 The forecast overspend of £3.6 million relates predominantly to Community 
Care, where a number of ongoing pressures exist around demographics and 
demand.  The actions to deal with these at the start of the year are now 
experiencing slippage.

 A number of savings are rated red or amber and are mainly prior year 
savings.  Progress of these is being closely monitored, however delivery of 
these is challenging as they relates to changes in care.  Resources were 
identified within – and have been allocated from – the Revenue Budget 
Contingency to offset the pressures in 2016/17.

 Adult Social Care Budgets across the country are under pressure with local 
authorities, public sector agencies and private providers all highlighting 
concerns to Government.

3.3.2 Families and Wellbeing: Children and Young People

 The forecast overspend of £5.3 million is within care services. It 
encompasses higher staff costs of £3 million and Looked After Children 
commissioning costs of £2.6 million. The latter mainly attributable to the 62 
placements currently in Independent Residential care and the projection 
assumes this number for the rest of the year. 

Page 115



6

 Additional investment is required during the year in respect of the 
implementation of the improvement actions and recommendations arising 
from issues raised in the Ofsted report. This requires a minimum of £2 million 
which is to be funded from the Transformation Fund. 

 The funding of children’s social care is a national issue with over 75% of local 
authorities reporting projected overspends in the current financial year.

3.3.3 Families and Wellbeing: Other

 Within Leisure a £0.5 million overspend relates to previously agreed saving 
targets in respect of reducing the subsidy combined with new targets.

 Public Health contract savings have been achieved but are being reinvested 
into other public health activity.

3.3.4 Regeneration and Environment

 Two areas make up the £1 million underspend. In Waste and Environment 
this through additional income from the litter enforcement contract and from 
increased subscriptions to the Garden Waste collection service. In Supported 
Housing contract efficiencies of £500,000 are expected in 2016/17 through 
the reconfiguration and negotiation with providers.

 There are a number of other smaller underspends but they are countered by 
a £200,000 overspend in Cultural Services. This is largely due to pressures at 
the Floral Pavilion as income generation is insufficient to cover costs.

3.3.5 Transformation & Resources

 An underspend of £1.8 million has been achieved in interest payable costs 
from Treasury Management activity including the use of temporary internal 
borrowing from cash flows to replace more expensive external borrowing.

 The Authority must annually make a charge known as the Minimum Revenue 
Provision (MRP) to the revenue budget. This relates to the notional 
repayment of capital financing debt. The MRP calculation method agreed 
when setting the 2016/17 budget will allow £3.2 million to be released in 
2016/17 along with an ongoing revenue budget saving of £0.45 million. The 
Treasury Management mid-year report will recommend to Council the 
adoption of the annuity asset life method for calculating MRP. This will 
provide an additional £3.7 million one off saving in 2016/17. 

 Asset Management is forecasting a £0.5 million overspend. Resources were 
identified from, the Revenue Budget Contingency but there are still issues 
relating to delayed implementation of savings.

 Legal & Member Services have a projected overspend of £0.5 million from 
external legal fees and Coroner budgets.  

3.3.6 Corporate Growth, Savings & Grant

 A further £1 million of savings has been identified in respect of contractual 
savings.  This has been placed against corporate savings and will be 
transferred and reflected in directorate budgets for future reports.

Page 116



7

3.4 IMPLEMENTATION OF SAVINGS

3.4.1 Savings of £31 million were agreed when setting the 2016/17 Budget. A 
further £10 million of savings relating to previous years savings had not been 
implemented which followed Cabinet in July 2015 agreeing to re-profile £9.6 
million of the 2015/16 savings to 2016/17, whilst a further £0.6 million was 
unachieved by March 2016. An analysis of the position of the £41 million of 
savings has been undertaken and is summarised below.

Table 5: Budget Implementation Plan 2016/17 (£000’s)

RAG
Total identified 
Shortfall  from 

2015/16 and prior

Pre-
Agreed 
16/17

Agreed 
in 

2016/17
Total

Red 5,400 460 3,205 9,065
Amber 1,492 1,300 1,376 4,168
Green 3,300 990 -913 3,377

Blue                             -   370 24,755 25,125
TOTAL 10,192 3,120 28,423 41,735

3.4.2 The savings tracker contains an assessment of the 2016/17 savings. 

 Blue: Represents £25.1 million of savings (60%) of total) which have 
already been realised.

 Green: Savings on track to deliver 
 Amber: Some concerns regarding delivery and will require closer 

scrutiny and monitoring and includes savings within Adults, Children 
and Asset Management. 

 Red: Concerns although largely covered by Revenue Budget 
Contingency as allocated in quarter 1 comprised of Children’s (£5 
million), Adults (£3.9 million), Transformation (£0.5 million) and 
Corporate (£1.7 million).

3.5 INCOME AND DEBT

3.5.1 Revenue and Income falls into four broad areas for reporting purposes. 
Amounts raised and collected in the year are shown in Table 6.

Table 6:  Amount to be Collected in 2016/17
2016/17 2016/17 2016/17

Collectable Collected Collected
£000 £000 %

Council Tax 146,467 80,031 54.6
Business Rates 76,218 41,812 54.9
Fees and charges:  Adults & 
Children

32,580 17,233 52.9

Fees and charges:  all other 
services

36,829 24,783 67.3

Page 117



8

COUNCIL TAX

3.5.2 Compared with September 2015 the collection performance is higher in both 
percentage terms and cash received. An additional £3.7 million has been 
collected. The table compares the amount collected in the period 1 April 2016 
to 30 September 2016 with the same period in 2015/16:

Table 7 : Council Tax Comparatives
Actual Actual

2016/17 2015/16
£000 £000

Cash to Collect £146,467 £140,145
Cash Collected £80,031 £76,373
% Collected 54.6% 54.5%

3.5.3 The major change this year relates to a 4% increase in the amount 
collectable of which 2% is for Adult Social Care. Overall Council Tax levels 
are £6.3 million more than this time last year. There has been a reduction in 
numbers eligible for Council Tax Support over the last 12 months. 

BUSINESS RATES

3.5.4 Cash received to 30 September 2016 is up by £1 million on the equivalent 
period a year ago. The percentage collected to date is lower due to the timing 
of in year receipts from some large properties with £1 million received early in 
October. Business Rate levels collectable are £5 million higher than last year 
reflecting an increased number of properties on the valuation list.

3.5.5 The table compares the amount collected for the period 1 April 2016 to 30 
September 2016 with the amount collected for the same period in 2015/16:

Table 8: National Non-Domestic Rates Comparatives
Actual Actual

2016/17 2015/16
£000 £000

Cash to Collect £76,218 £71,196
Cash Collected £41,812 £40,920
% Collected 54.9% 57.5%

3.5.6 Wirral is part of the Liverpool City Region Business Rates Retention pilot 
scheme. It is expected that next year we will retain 100% of all Business 
Rates collected; the figure is currently 49%. Any increase in income will 
however be offset by reduction/cancelling of Government Grants and the 
transfer to Wirral of additional responsibilities. The Government have stated 
that pilot authorities will not be financially disadvantaged by being part of the 
pilot. Wirral currently receives more in the centrally allocated NNDR ‘top-up’ 
grant than its proportion of collectable NNDR.

Page 118



9

3.5.7 New Rateable Values (RV) will be effective nationally from 1 April 2017 and 
businesses have been able to check their new proposed rateable values 
since 1 October 2016. The new RVs combined with the reduced multiplier 
used to determine bills seem unlikely at this stage to make a significant 
change to the Council’s financial position. 

DEBTORS

3.5.8 At the end of September 2016 the arrears stood at £23.3 million. The table 
provides an analysis across service areas and the amount of debt at each 
recovery stage:

Table 9: Accounts Receivable Outstanding Arrears Analysis
Directorate 
Description

Less than 
10 days

1st 
reminder

2nd 
reminder

3rd 
reminder

Total at 
30.09.16

£ £ £ £ £
Chief 
Executive

86,332 10,449 13,117 970,727 1,080,625

Neighbourhood 29,031 0 1,122 13,357 43,510
Transformation 
& Resources

3,376,824 718,596 476,479 1,283,078 5,854,977

Families & 
Wellbeing

3,244,174 453,900 284,359 10,975,497 14,957,930

Regeneration 
& Environment

751,598 123,358 77,907 492,067 1,444,930

Policy & 
Performance

0 0 0 100,000 100,000

Totals 7,487,959 1,306,303 852,984 13,834,726 23,481,972

3.5.9 The figures are for invoices in respect of the period up to the end of 
September 2016. Payments as well as amendments such as write-offs and 
debt cancellations continue to be made after this date on all these accounts.  
There is a further deduction of £138,189 to be made for unallocated 
payments at month end leaving a balance of £23,343,783 compared to 
£24,710.123 last year.

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 The adoption of the Asset Life method to calculate the Minimum Revenue 
Provision has been calculated has allowed a minimum of £2.5 million of 
backdated savings in 2016/17.  A further £3.7 million can be achieved if 
Council agrees to the use of the annuity rather than equal instalment Asset 
Life method. Both of these revised calculation methods result in the total 
repayment of the Capital Financing debt, but over a longer period of time. The 
Treasury Management Mid-Year report will recommend to Council the 
adoption of the annuity life method.

Page 119



10

4.2 The estimated General Fund Balance position is calculated in the table below

Table 10: Summary of the Projected General Fund Balances
Details £m
Balance 31 March 2016 when setting the Budget 2016/17 +11.5
Add; Additional Returned New Homes Bonus Grant 0.2
Add: Increase following closure of 2015/16 accounts 1.3
Less: Allocation for care fees -1.5
Less: Reversal of passport for life budget option -0.1
Projected Balance Excluding Current Year Projection 11.4
Less: Potential underspend at September 2016 0.2
Projected Balance 31 March 2017   11.6

4.3 The projected General Fund balance of £11.6 million at 31 March 2016 is in 
line with the minimum level required as agreed as part of the Budget 2016/17.

4.4 As part of the Budget 2017/18 preparation there is to be a review of the 
Earmarked Reserves. The Reserves excluding School balances totalled 
£58.8 million at 1 April 2016. These include reserves relating to the cost of 
transformation, mitigation of future financial risks and specific project support. 

4.5 There are no IT, staffing or asset implications arising directly out of this report.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 The entire report concerns the duty of the Council to avoid a budget shortfall.  
The Chief Finance Officer has a personal duty under the Local Government 
Finance Act 1988 Section 114A to make a report to the executive if it appears 
to them that the expenditure of the authority incurred (including expenditure it 
proposes to incur) in a financial year is likely to exceed the resources  
available to it to meet that expenditure.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS; ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS

6.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report.

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS

7.1 The possible failure to deliver the Revenue Budget is being mitigated by:

 Senior Leadership Team / Directorate Teams reviewing the financial 
position.

 Tracking system of savings options to monitor progress.
 Use of temporary additional support to assist with revenues collection.
 Use of earmarked reserves and General Fund Balance savings risk 

contingency

Page 120



11

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION

8.1 No consultation has been carried out in relation to this report.

9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

9.1 This report is essentially a monitoring report which reports on financial 
performance.

REPORT AUTHOR: Peter Molyneux
Senior Manager
Telephone (0151) 666 3389
Email petemolyneux@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 General Fund Revenue Budget 2016/17
Appendix 2 New Operating Model Budgets 2016/17

SUBJECT HISTORY

Council Meeting Date
Budget Council
Cabinet – Revenue Monitoring 2016/17 Quarter 1

3 March 2016
18 July 2016

Page 121



12

APPENDIX 1

GENERAL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2016/17

ORIGINAL BUDGET AGREED BY COUNCIL ON 3 MARCH 2015

Department Original
Agreed
Budget

Agreed
Changes
Quarter 1

Proposed
Changes
Quarter 2

Revised
Agreed
Budget

Expenditure £000 £000 £000 £000
FWB - Adult Social Care 71,311 5,400 298 77,009
FWB – Children & Young People 67,773 5000 516 73,289
FWB - Further Areas: Safeguarding, 
Schools, Leisure, Public Health

9,383 100 126 9,609

Regeneration & Environment 83,607 - 193 83,800
Transformation & Resources 24,730 500 193 25,423
Net Cost of Services 256,804 11,000 1,326 269,130
Corporate Savings/Growth -253 1,700 1,326 121
Education Services Grant -3,156 - - -3,156
Revenue Budget Contingency 11,200 -11,100 - 100
Budget Requirement 264,595 1,600 0 266,195

Income
Revenue Support Grant 50,710 - - 50,710
Top Up 41,630 - - 41,630
New Homes Bonus 3,178 - - 3,178
Business Rates Baseline 34,828 - - 34,828
Business Rates Section 31 Grants 2,193 - - 2,193
Council Tax Requirement 120,274 - - 120,274
Council Tax Freeze Grant - - -
Contribution from Balances & Reserves 11,782 1,600 - 13,382
Total Income 264,595 1,600 - 266,195

Statement of Balances
As at 1 April 2016 11,500 - 11,500
Contributions to Balances (1) - 1,500 - 1,500
Contributions from Balances (2) - -1600 - -1,600
Potential underspend at Quarter 2 2016 - - 200 200
Forecast Balances 31 March 2017 11,500 -100 200 11,600

Notes:
1. Contribution to Balances relate to closure of accounts 2015/16 (£1.3 million) 

and returned New Homes Bonus grant (£0.2 million) 
2. Contributions from Balances relate to Care Fees contribution (£1.5 million) 

and reversal of passport for life saving (£0.1 million) 

Page 122



13

APPENDIX 2

GENERAL FUND BUDGET 2016/17
NEW OPERATING MODEL

Budget 2016-17

Net 
Expenditur

e Total

Function Business Unit £000
Chief Executive Chief Executive's Unit 265

Children's Care 18,039
Children's Care - Commissioned 19,084
Children's Services 7,074

Chief Executive Total 44,462
Transformation Transformation 655
Transformation Total 655
Strategic Hub Communication 957

Environment 40,149
Growth 922
Health & Care 65,489
Health & Wellbeing 721
Health & Wellbeing - Public Health 0
Intelligence 619
Schools 587
Strategy 230
Director for Strategic Hub 182

Strategic Hub Total 109,856
Business Services Assets 2,991

Commissioning Support 13,221
Digital 679
Finance 1,636
HR & OD 450
Law & Governance 4,783
Director for Business Unit 129

Business Services Total 23,889
Delivery Adult & Disability 36,036

Community Services 26,848
Customer Services 5,007
Environmental services 22,125
Merseyside Pension Fund 0
Director for Delivery 2

Delivery Total 90,018
Corporate Growth and Savings Corporate Growth and Savings -2,685
Corporate Growth and Savings Total -2,685
Grand Total 266,195

Notes:
1. Above is recast on a full year basis. Implementation date is 1st November 2016

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2

Wirral
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES

NOVEMBER 2016

REPORT TITLE CAPITAL MONITORING 
2016/17 QUARTER 2

REPORT OF ASSISTANT DIRECTOR : 
FINANCE SECTION 151 
OFFICER

REPORT SUMMARY
This report provides an update on progress towards delivering the Capital 
Programme 2016/17 at the end of September 2016. 

The report outlines changes which will reduce the 2016/17 Capital Programme to 
£38.1 million and which will be referred to Cabinet and Council. This takes into 
account re-profiling identified during both the 2015/16 final accounts process, latest 
reviews of the current year and additional grant funding notified to the Council. The 
expenditure to date is £10.6 million.

This matter is a key decision which affects all Wards within the Borough.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. Note the spend to date at Month 6 of £10.6 million, with 50% of the financial 
year having elapsed;

2. Note the revised Capital Programme of £38.1 million (Table 1) which is to be 
referred to Cabinet and Council and will include a number of recommended 
virements as outlined in paragraph 3.5 of the report. 

Page 125



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

1.1 Regular monitoring and reporting of the Capital Programme enables decisions 
to be taken more efficiently and effectively, which may produce revenue 
benefits and will improve the financial control of the Programme.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 No other options have been considered.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

OVERALL POSITION AT END OF SEPTEMBER 2016

3.1 The actual spend against the Capital Programme is summarised in Table 1.

Chart 1: Capital Programme spend below line of best fit

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70

P0 P3 P6 P9 P12

£m

Months

Capital Programme 2016/17

Revised Programme Actual spend

ORIGINAL AND PROPOSED CAPITAL PROGRAMME FOR 2016/17

3.2 The Programme for 2016/17 is subject to change. Presently it reflects;

£000
Programme agreed by Cabinet on 22 February 2016 48,107
Year end re-profiling 6,364
Additional grant funding 1,750
Variations identified March 2016 2,750
Variations identified since June 2016 (see Table 2) -20,885
Revised 2016/17 Programme 38,086

Page 126



*Table 1: Capital Programme 2016/17 at 30 September 2016

Capital 
Strategy

Revisions 
Since 

Budget

Revised 
Capital 

Programme

Actual 
Spend 

Sept 2016
£000 £000 £000 £000

Transformation Resources 7,863 1,237 9,100 2,634
Families – Children 9,185 -282 8,903 3,133
Families – Adults 10,255 -7,706 2,549 164
Families – Sport & Rec 2,871 -1,111 1,760 570
R&E–  Env & Regulation 10,016 844 10,860 2,881
R&E–  Hsg & Comm Safety 7,317 -2,945 4,372 1,106
R& E – Regeneration 600 -58 542 90
Total expenditure 48,107 -10,021 38,086 10,578

3.3 PROGRESS TO DATE

3.3.1 Transformation and Resources

The investment in IT is focussed on migrating all servers and applications to 
the core domain and, where possible, upgrading applications to the latest 
version; upgrading all Windows Server operating systems to a supported 
operating system and reducing the server footprint by virtualising all servers 
where possible.

Works to increase building occupancy have mainly focused on Wallasey 
Town Hall, Moreton Municipal, and Solar Campus. These schemes enable the 
existing buildings to operate more efficiently with a higher level of occupancy.

Works continue with improvements to Parks Depots with the service road to 
Warren Farm Depot having been re-surfaced, the vehicle entrance widened, 
and new security cameras installed. The main site accommodation is being 
refurbished with a new heating system and new double glazed windows. 
Improvements to staff welfare areas, kitchen and toilets are being undertaken.

3.3.2 Families and Wellbeing - Children

A new classroom has been constructed at Elleray Park to meet capacity 
needs. External accessibility has been included, including improved play 
areas.

Two classrooms were extended at Mersey Park School to provide additional 
space and improved IT. A resource/group room was constructed to provide 
additional space for small group work and break out space.

Page 127



The development at Stanley School includes two additional classrooms with 
the latest and most up to date learning facilities, providing excellent teaching 
environments which are comfortable and provide safe spaces, the classrooms 
will have assisted lifting and hygiene facilities and the latest IT equipment.

The Hive, Wirral’s soon to be opened Youth Zone, is progressing according to 
schedule with the completion date expected mid-February 2017.

Works to schools, funded from Government grant, as part of the 
Modernisation and Basic Needs programmes continue to be managed in 
conjunction with the schools which has seen significant sums re-profiled in 
2017/18.

3.3.3 Families and Wellbeing - Adults

The programme is primarily focussed on the provision of extra care / 
specialised housing which remains the subject of on-going consultation and 
negotiation and therefore the funding has been re-profiled.

3.3.4 Families and Wellbeing - Sport and Recreation

Re-roofing of Bidston Tennis Centre is now complete.

Work has commenced to provide integrated accommodation at West Kirby 
Marine Lake, which will be mainly incurred in 2017/18, and also the 
redevelopment of the Oval Sports Centre.

3.3.5 Regeneration and Environment – Environment and Regulation

The majority of expenditure has been incurred on various highway 
maintenance schemes such as hot road asphalting where 20 schemes are 
either complete or underway with spend totalling £0.75 million, Micro 
asphalting  with 7 schemes complete or underway totalling £0.67 million and 
Surface dressing with 12 schemes complete or underway totalling £0.43 
million.

The scheme to replace the docks bridges, which attracts significant 
Government grant funding over the next two years, has commenced.

The west Kirby Flood alleviation works also involves grant funding and a re-
profiled business case has been submitted to the environment Agency. 
Approval is awaited so the funding has been re-profiled to 2017/18.

3.3.6 Regeneration and Environment – Housing

£0.7 million of grant aid has been provided for the provision of essential aids 
and adaptations giving disabled people better freedom of movement in and 
around their homes.

Page 128



The home improvement scheme has provided £0.3 million of financial 
assistance and intervention to remedy poor housing conditions in the private 
sector.

3.4 A review of the Programme has been undertaken and amended to reflect 
updated project delivery forecasts and changes in available funding. The 
variances which have arisen since June are shown in Table 2. A number of 
funding virements have also been considered by the officers’ Assets and 
Capital Group (ACG) and these are discussed in paragraph 3.5.

Table 2: Cash variations to the 2016/17 Programme

Scheme £000
Transformation & Resources
Energy efficiency initiatives – scheme competed
Treasury Building – re-profiled
Industrial Estates – the portfolio requires a further review 
before committing funds so removed from Programme

Families & Wellbeing – Children
School Place Planning – re-profiled
Condition/Modernisation – re-profiled
Basic Needs – re-profiled
Family support schemes – re-profiled
Youth Capital – reduced requirement
Elleray Park – funded from modernisation programme

Families & Wellbeing – Adults
Community Intermediate Care – re-profiled. Focus now on 
improving access to GPs. £0.4m required  2017/18 (net 
scheme reduction of £0.5m)
Extra Care Housing – re-profiled
Learning Disabilities extra care housing – re-profiled
Integrated Social Care – scheme to be re-evaluated
Pensby Wood Centre – re-profiled

Families & Wellbeing – Sport and Recreation
Oval – additional resources for fitness equipment for gym
West Kirby Marine Lake Accommodation –re-profiled
West Kirby/Guinea Gap – retention and professional fees 
remain but scheme completed under budget
Oval - re-profiled retentions
Leasowe Leisure 3G Pitches – re-profiled

-218
-150
-150

-1,717
-914

-1,010
-137
-149

-72

-900

-1,400
-3,000
-2,000

-900

230
-875
-160

-129
-820

Page 129



Scheme £000

Reg & Env – Environment
Bridges – additional grant funding
West Kirby Flood Alleviation – re-profiled (business case still 
awaiting final approval from the Environment Agency)
Maintenance to unclassified/residential streets is subsumed 
into maintenance programme – reduced requirement

Reg & Env – Housing
Clearance - re-profiled
Home improvements - re-profiled
Aids, Adaptations and Disabled Facility Grants - re-profiled
Restore Empty Homes - re-profiled
New House Building Programme - re-profiled

Reg & Env – Regeneration
Business Investment Grants – re-profiled

Minor variations

Total Variations

570
-1,850

-500

-881
-481

-1,696
-374
-297

-737

-168

-20,885

3.5 The ACG has considered and recommends virements. The Transport Depot 
improvements are now almost complete and the plan to relocate Ebeneezer 
Street to Cleveland Street is no longer being considered due to capacity and 
operational issues. The new build element is not required at Cleveland Street 
and is likely to be completed at Warren Farm Depot. This would release 
£2.378 million of Council resources. As there are gaps within the Programme 
it is recommended this funding be used as follows.

Table 3 : Virement Variations to the 2016/17 Programme

Scheme £000
Transport Depot
Change in the scheme (see above)
Building refurbishment to increase occupancy
Continued drive to rationalise office portfolio
Pensby Wood Centre
Survey highlighted issues over pipework and new windows
West Kirby Marine Lake – integrated accommodation
Full detailed design to maximise potential income. There are 
additional structural issues given the location.
Demolition of former Rock Ferry School
Increased costs with additional sum required.
Fund for land assembly
Assist in creating economic growth by releasing surplus land 
and property for development.

-2,378

+.500

+600

+300

+85

+893

Page 130



3.6 Schemes remain subject to ongoing review to ensure that a deliverable 
Programme is in place, that they are compatible with the 2020 Vision and to 
try and identify any savings.

FINANCING OF THE CAPITAL PROGRAMME

3.7 Table 4 summarises the financing sources for the Capital Strategy (original 
programme) and Revised Programme.

Table 4: Revised Capital Programme Financing

Capital Programme Financing Capital 
Strategy

Revised 
Programme

£000 £000
Unsupported Borrowing 16,852 11,838
Capital Receipts 13,339 7,263
Revenue and Reserves 1,004 117
Grants 16,912 18,868
Total Financing 48,107 38,086

3.8 Any re-profiling which reduces borrowing delivers one-off revenue savings. A 
permanent saving only occurs if schemes cease, otherwise the full budget will 
be required in 2017/18 when the re-profiled expenditure is incurred.

PROJECTED LONGER TERM CAPITAL PROGRAMME

3.9 Funding for the forecast 2016/17 to 2018/19 Programme reflects the 2016/19 
Capital Programme agreed by Cabinet on 22 February 2016 with subsequent 
amendments for reprofiling and revised grant notifications. 

Table 5: Capital Programme Financing 2016/17 to 2018/19

Capital Programme 
Financing

2016/17
Revised

Programme

2017/18
Revised

Programme

2018/19
Revised

Programme

Total
Programme

£000 £000 £000 £000
Unsupported 
Borrowing

11,838 14,245 1,720 27,803

Capital Receipts 7,263 675 0 7,938
Revenue / Reserves 117 399 50 566
Grants 18,868 20,104 0 38,972
Total Financing 38,086 35,423 1,770 75,279

Page 131



SUPPORTED AND UNSUPPORTED BORROWING AND THE REVENUE 
CONSEQUENCES OF UNSUPPORTED BORROWING

3.10 Based on the current cost, £1 million of Prudential Borrowing would result in 
additional revenue financing costs of approximately £75,000 per annum in the 
following year.  As part of the Capital Strategy 2016/17 to 2018/19 the Council 
has included an element of prudential borrowing. Presently there is £27.8 
million new Unsupported Borrowing included over the three years, which will 
result in approximately £2.1 million of additional revenue costs.

Table 6: Unsupported Borrowing Forecasts & Revenue Costs

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
£000 £000 £000 £000

New Unsupported Borrowing
Cumulative

11,838
11,838

14,245
26,083

1,720
27,803

0
27,803

Annual Revenue repayment costs 
Cumulative 240 1,125 1,986 2,085

CAPITAL RECEIPTS

3.11 The Capital Programme is reliant on the Council generating capital receipts to 
finance future schemes. Available capital receipts at 1 April 2016 were £8.047 
million. The table assumes the proposed spend, set out at Table 1 is agreed. 
Receipts and funding assumptions are based upon the latest estimates.

Table 6: Projected Capital Receipts position

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
£000 £000 £000

Capital Receipts Reserve 8,047 784 109
In - Receipts Assumption 2,750 6,250 3,900
Out - Funding (Capital) -7,263 -675 0
Out - Funding (Transformation) -2,750 -6,250 -3,900
Closing Balance 784 109 109

3.12 Additional flexibilities relating to the use of receipts were confirmed in the 
Local Government Finance Settlement for 2016/17. Receipts generated 
between 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2019, excluding Right-To-Buy receipts, can 
be used to fund Transformation provided the Council has agreed a 
Transformation Programme setting out the projects, costs and deliverable 
benefits / savings.

3.13 In respect of the major receipts. For Manor Drive, provided there are no 
planning consent issues, the Council should receive £2.25 million in 2016/17 
with a similar amount in 2017/18. The sale of Acre Lane should become 
clearer in the coming weeks with the first receipt assumed for 2017/18 with 
similar amounts for 2018/19 and 2019/20. No account has been taken as yet 
for any potential receipt in connection with the former Rock Ferry High School.

Page 132



4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 The revised 2016/17 Capital Programme is £38.1 million with anticipated 
Capital Receipts remaining at the year-end of £0.7 million and £2.75 million 
earmarked to support the Transformation Programme.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 There are none arising directly from this report.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS

6.1 There are none arising directly from this report.

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

7.1 The possibility of failure to deliver the Capital Programme is mitigated by a 
monthly review by a senior group of officers.

7.2 The generation of capital receipts may be influenced by factors outside the 
authority’s control e.g. ecological issues. Lambert, Smith, Hampton continue 
to provide external support.

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1 There has been no specific consultation with regards to this report.

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 There are none arising directly from this report.

REPORT AUTHOR: Reg Huyton
Principal Accountant
telephone:  0151 666 3415
email:   reghuyton@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 – Capital Programme and Funding 2016/17.
Appendix 2 – Capital Receipts 2016/17.

SUBJECT HISTORY
Council Meeting Date
Capital monitoring reports presented to Cabinet
       previous report to Cabinet 
Capital Programme – Council
Capital Programme – Council

Various

22 February 2016
3 March 2016

Page 133

mailto:reghuyton@wirral.gov.uk


Capital Programme and Funding 2016/17 APPENDIX 1

Transformation & Resources

Revised 
Programme 

£000

Spend to 
Date
£000

Council 
Resources 

£000

Revenue/ 
Reserves 

£000
Grants 
£000

Total 
Funding 

£000

Building refurbishment to increase 
occupancy 1,917 427 1,917 - - 1,917
Fund to assist land assembly and resale 893 268 893 - - 893
Cleveland Street. Transport Depot 500 8 500 - - 500
Demolish Bebington Town Hall 378 4 378 - - 378
Demolish former Rock Ferry High School 480 17 480 - - 480
Park depots rationalisation 1,002 396 1,002 - - 1,002
Stanley Special School  / renovation 18 1 18 - - 18
Demolish former Foxfield School 30 6 30 - - 30
CCTV Cameras and other equipment 100 - 100 - - 100
I.T. development 1,423 1,402 1,423 - - 1,423
Transport Museum 261 - 261 - - 261
Flaybrick Cemetery 175 75 175 - - 175
Millennium Centre re-modelling 523 28 523 - - 523
Pensby Wood Centre 900 - - - - 900
Treasury Building 500 2 500 - - 500

9,100 2,634  9,100 - - 9,100

P
age 134



Families and Wellbeing – CYP

Revised 
Programme 

£000 

Spend to 
Date
£000 

Council 
Resources 

£000

Revenue/ 
Reserves 

£000
Grants 
£000

Total 
Funding 

£000

School Place Planning 1,400 288 706 - 694 1,400
Condition/Modernisation 3,200 1,507 - - 3,200 3,200
Basic Need allocation 1,500 261 - - 1,500 1,500
Funding for 2 year olds 17 - - - 17 17
Universal Free School Meals - 13 - - - -
Somerville Mobile Replacement 101 18 101 - - 101
Private Finance Initiative 85 - - 85 - 85
Family Support Scheme 100 46 100 - - 100
Wirral Youth Zone – the Hive 1,900 600 1,900 - - 1,900
Stanley Special School 617 400 617 - - 617

8,903 3,133 3,424 85 5,394 8,903

Families and Wellbeing – DASS

Revised 
Programme 

£000

Spend to 
Date
 £000

Council 
Resources 

£000

Revenue/ 
Reserves 

£000
Grants 
£000

Total 
Funding 

£000

Citizen and Provider Portal/Integrated I.T 1,078 85 461 - 617 1,078
Transformation of Day Service 156 79 - - 156 156
Extra Care housing 600 - - - 600 600
Assistive Technology 615 - 230 - 385 615
Community Intermediate Care Services 100 - 100 - - 100

2,549 164 791 - 1,758 2,549

P
age 135



Families and Wellbeing – Sports & 
Recreation

Revised 
Programme 

£000

Spend to 
Date
 £000

Council 
Resources 

£000

Revenue/ 
Reserves 

£000
Grants 
£000

Total 
Funding 

£000

West Kirby/Guinea Gap 82 28 82 - - 82
Wirral Tennis Centre - Artificial Turf Pitch &
          perimeter fence repairs 48 12 48 - - 48
West Kirby Marine Lake – Integrated  

accommodation and service delivery 250 184 100 - 150 250
Oval Sports Centre re-development 1,080 76 1,080 - - 1,080
Wirral Tennis Centre re-roofing 300 270 300 - - 300

1,760 570 1,610 - 150 1,760

P
age 136



Regeneration and Environment - 
Environment & Regulation

Revised 
Programme 

£000

Spend to 
Date 
£000

Council 
Resources 

£000

Revenue/ 
Reserves 

£000
Grants 
£000

Total 
Funding 

£000

Road Safety 97 89 97 - - 97
Active Travel 78 7 78 - - 78
Bridges 862 41 292 - 570 862
Highway Maintenance 3,242 1,953 67 - 3,175 3,242
Pothole Action Fund 206 131 - - 206 206
Transport for Growth 1,923 76 510 - 1,413 1,923
Start Active, Play Active, Stay active 14 23 14 - - 14
Wirral Way - widening / safety improvements 4 2 4 - - 4
Cemetery Extensions and Improvements 273 4 273 - - 273
Coast Protection 242 1 233 9 - 242
East Float access improvements Tower Road 200 1 - - 200 200
Wirral International Business Park connections 195 - - - 195 195
East Float access improvements Duke Street 395 32 - - 395 395
Energy schemes (LED Street Lighting) 32 92 32 - - 32
Street lighting 60 17 - - 60 60
Allotments 121 112 121 - - 121
Parks vehicles replacement 117 - 117 - - 117
West Kirby Flood Alleviation 103 - 100 3 - 103
Gorsefield Avenue flood relief 100 - - 20 80 100
Dock Bridges Replacement 2,596 300 66 - 2,530 2,596

10,860 2,881 2,004 32 8,824 10,860

P
age 137



Regeneration and Environment - Housing & 
Community Safety

Revised 
Programme 

£000

Spend 
to Date 

£000

Council 
Resources 

£000

Revenue/ 
Reserves 

£000
Grants 
£000

Total 
Funding 

£000

Aids, Adaptations and Disabled Facility Grants 2,000 692 - - 2,000 2,000
Clearance 560 1 100 - 460 560
Home Improvement 650 263 650 - - 650
New House Building Programme 884 150 884 - - 884
Restore Empty Homes 278 - - - 278 278

4,372 1,106 1,634 - 2,738 4,372

Regeneration and Environment – 
Regeneration

Revised 
Programme 

£000

Spend 
to Date 

£000

Council 
Resources 

£000

Revenue/ 
Reserves 

£000
Grants 
£000

Total 
Funding 

£000

Business Investment Grants 238 86 238 - - 238
The Priory 4 4 - - 4 4
Growth Fund 300 - 300 - - 300

542 90 538 - 4 542

Total 37,886 10,578 18,901 117 18,868 37,886

Note : The Programme in Appendix 1 assumes that the changes / virements in Sections 3.4 and 3.5 of the report are agreed.

P
age 138



APPENDIX 2

CAPITAL RECEIPTS RECEIVED DURING 2016/17

Cash Received £000

Ex-HRA Magenta Housing Right to Buy 389
North Star, 294 Laird Street 15
One O’Clock Gun site 10
Hind Street /Thomas Street land 19
Empty Homes (various) 55

Total 488

Page 139



This page is intentionally left blank



Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee
30 November 2016

REPORT TITLE: Environment Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee - Work Programme Update

REPORT OF: The Chair of the Committee

REPORT SUMMARY

This report explains the process of developing and managing the scrutiny work 
programme for the municipal year. The Environment Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee, in cooperation with the other two Overview & Scrutiny Committees, is 
responsible for proposing and delivering an annual work programme. This work 
programme should align with the corporate priorities of the Council, in particular the 
delivery of the Wirral Plan pledges which are within the remit of the Committee. 
   
The report provides an update regarding progress made since the last Committee 
meeting held on 21st September. The current work programme is made up of a 
combination of scrutiny reviews, standing items and requested officer reports. This 
provides the committee with an opportunity to plan and regularly review its work 
across the municipal year. 

RECOMMENDATION/S

1. Members are requested to approve the proposed Environment Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee work programme for 2016/17, making any required 
amendments, including suggestions for additional items.  

2. Members are requested to establish a Review Panel for the Modern Slavery 
Task and Finish Scrutiny Review.

Page 141

Agenda Item 10



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

To ensure members of the Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee have 
the opportunity to contribute to the delivery of the annual work programme.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

Not Applicable

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 THE SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME

The work programme should align with the priorities of the Council and its 
partners. The programme will be informed by:

 The Wirral Plan pledges
 The Council’s transformation programme
 The Council’s Forward Plan
 Service performance information
 Risk management information
 Public or service user feedback
 Referrals from Cabinet / Council

3.2 PRINCIPLES FOR PRIORITISATION

Good practice suggests that, in order to maximise the impact of scrutiny, it is 
necessary to prioritise proposed topics within the work programme. Members 
may find the following criteria helpful in providing a guideline towards ensuring 
that the most significant topics are prioritised:

Principles for Prioritisation
Does the topic have a direct link with one of the 
2020 pledges?Wirral Plan Will the review lead to improved outcomes for 
Wirral residents?

Public Interest Does the topic have particular importance for Wirral 
Residents?

Transformation Will the review support the transformation of the 
Council?
Is the subject matter an area of significant spend or 
potential saving?Financial 

Significance Will the review support the Council in achieving its 
savings targets?
Is this the most appropriate time for this topic to be 
scrutinised?Timeliness / 

Effectiveness Will the review be a good use of Council 
resources?

Page 142



By assessing prospective topics using these criteria, the Committee can 
prioritise an effective work programme that ensures relevance and the highest 
potential to enhance outcomes for residents.

3.3 DELIVERING THE WORK PROGRAMME

The work programme consists of a combination of scrutiny reviews, standing 
items and requested officer reports. Regular work programme update reports 
will provide the committee with an opportunity to plan and regularly review its 
work across the municipal year. 

The work programme will be delivered through a combination of:

 Scrutiny reviews undertaken by task & finish groups
 Standing panels
 Evidence days and workshops
 Committee reports provided by officers
 Standing committee agenda items, for example, performance 

monitoring and financial monitoring
 Spotlight sessions  

During the municipal year, regular work programme review sessions will be 
held between the Chairs and Spokespersons of the Committee in order to 
effectively manage the work programme. This will help to ensure that higher 
priority topics are given greatest prominence on the work programme as it 
progresses and is modified during the year. 

3.4 UPDATE ON CURRENT SCRUTINY ACTIVITY

3.4.1 The Number of Councillors Scrutiny Review

A scrutiny review panel comprising Cllrs Brightmore, Foulkes, Sykes, Carubia 
and McLaughlin was formed following the September Committee and a 
scoping meeting took place during October. A number of evidence sessions 
have been scheduled for November. The Panel intends to present a final 
report to this Committee meeting for consideration of its findings and 
recommendations.

3.4.2 Transforming Wirral Business Cases – Community Safety

Committee Members will be aware that a workshop was held on 1st 
September 2016 to review an outline business case relating Community 
Safety as part of the Council Transformation Programme. A report 
summarising Members’ comments was presented to Environment Committee 
on 21st September. A further report will be taken to the next available Cabinet 
meeting requesting Cabinet to review the comments of Committee Members 
and to include these as part of its considerations when the full Community 
Safety Business Case is presented to Cabinet.

Page 143



3.4.3 Budget Scrutiny 2017/18

It is proposed that the scrutiny process for budget proposals will follow a 
similar approach this year to that adopted for the 2016/17 budget process.  It 
is expected that separate workshops will be held for each of the three scrutiny 
committees (Business, Environment and People). It is anticipated that the 
Environment workshops will be held during December or January with a 
report containing Members’ feedback being prepared for the next 
Environment Overview & Scrutiny meeting on 31st January. 

In order to plan for the workshops, as with last year’s process, it is proposed 
that the full list of budget proposals will be reviewed by the Chairs and 
Spokespersons once they become available.  The options falling within the 
committee’s remit will be prioritised for further scrutiny at the workshops. 
Relevant officers will be invited to the workshops to provide an overview and 
answer questions for the proposals selected.  

3.4.4 Flood Risk Standing Panel

At the July meeting of Committee it was resolved that a Standing Panel be 
formed, enabling the Environment Committee to perform the Council’s 
statutory responsibilities to undertake scrutiny of local flood and coastal 
erosion risk management functions under the Flood and Water Management 
Act 2010. An initial meeting between the Chair and the Head of Community 
Safety has taken place and a further scoping meeting will be scheduled with 
the Chair and Party Spokespersons. It is intended that the Flood Risk 
Standing Panel will meet for the first time early in 2017.

3.4.5 Modern Slavery Act Scrutiny Review

It is proposed that this task & finish review will commence in January 2017. 
Committee is requested to appoint a Review Panel to allow a scoping meeting to 
be scheduled.

3.5 FUTURE WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS

The following items for the 2016/17 Committee work programme have been 
identified and will be scheduled for future Committee meetings:

Item Format Approximate 
timescale 

Presentation from Partner Housing 
Association on Impact of Welfare 
Reforms (TBC)

Presentation January 2017

Housing Strategy Committee Report / 
Presentation

January 2017

Homelessness Update Report Officer Report January 2017
Budget Scrutiny Scrutiny Workshops (to 

be confirmed)
December 2016 / 
January 2017 
TBC

Page 144



Wirral’s Residents Live Healthier 
Lives Strategy

Committee Report / 
Presentation

TBC

Wirral’s Neighbourhoods are Safe 
Strategy

Committee Report / 
Presentation

TBC

Wirral’s Waste Management 
Strategy

Committee Report / 
Presentation

TBC

Wirral’s Loving our Environment 
Strategy

Committee Report / 
Presentation

TBC

Third Sector Strategy Committee Report / 
Presentation

TBC

Volunteering Strategy Committee Report / 
Presentation

TBC

Coastal Strategy Scrutiny Review 
follow-up report

Officer Report TBC

Transforming Wirral – further 
business cases

Workshops TBC

Welfare Reforms (including Welfare 
Assistance Scheme)

To be confirmed TBC

Further items will be identified as the municipal year progresses. In addition,
standing items such as performance monitoring reports and policy inform
briefings will be included on meeting agendas.

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Not Applicable

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Not Applicable

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS

The delivery of the scrutiny work programme will be met from within existing 
resources. 

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

Not Applicable

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

Not Applicable

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

This report is for information to Members and there are no direct equality 
implications. 

Page 145



REPORT AUTHOR: Patrick Torpey
Scrutiny Support
0151 691 8381
email:  patricktorpey@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES

REFERENCE MATERIAL

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date

Page 146

mailto:patricktorpey@wirral.gov.uk

	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes , 21/09/2016 Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	Minutes , 09/11/2016 Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee

	3 Notice of Motion: Performance Management Reporting Arrangements
	4 Notice of Motion: Recognising the contribution of our Friends Groups
	6 Wirral Leisure Strategy
	7 Wirral Culture Strategy
	8 2016/17 Quarter 2 Wirral Plan Performance - Environment Theme
	Enc. 1 for 2016/17 Quarter 2 Wirral Plan Performance - Environment Theme

	9 2016/17 Quarter 2 - Financial Monitoring
	REVENUE MONITOR Q2 O&S 2016
	CAPITAL MONITORING Q2 O&S 2016

	10 Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Work Programme Update

